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Convenience Translation of the Independent Auditors’ Review Report

Originally Prepared and Issued in Turkish

To the Board of Directors of
Tiirkiye Smai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S.
istanbul

We have reviewed the unconsolidated balance sheet of Tiirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankast A.$. (“the
Bank”) as of 30 September 2010 and the related unconsolidated income statement, statement of
cash flows and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the nine-month period then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our responsibility as
independent auditors is to issue a review report on these financial statements based on our review.
The financial statements of the Bank as of and for the year ended 31 December 2009 and, as of and
for the nine month period ended 30 September 2009 were audited and reviewed, respectively by
another auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion in their report dated 10 February 2010 for the
financial statements as of 31 December 2009 and an unqualified review report dated 5 November
2009 for the financial statements as of 30 September 2009.

We conducted our review in accordance with the regulations related with the “Accounting and
Recording Rules” and “Independent Auditing Standards” of the (Turkish) Banking Law No 5411.
These regulations require that we plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to
inquiries of the personnel of the Bank and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus
provide less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit, and accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying financial statements do not give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Tiirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S. as of 30 September 2010 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows, for the period then ended in accordance with the prevailing accounting principles and
standards set out as per the Article No: 37 of the Banking Act No: 5411, and other regulations and
pronouncements in respect of accounting and financial reporting made by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency.

Istanbul, Akis Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest
4 November 2010 Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik
nonim Sirketi

i

Murat Alsan
Partner

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English:

As explained in Section 3 Note I, the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the
financial position and results of operations in accordance with the accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Turkey.

Akis Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik A S.,
a Turkish corporation and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
FOR THE NINE MONTHS PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

E-Mail Address for Contact Person: pazlicaa@ iskh.com.tr

The unconsolidated financial report for the nine months includes the following sections in accordance with “Communiqué on
the Financial Statements and Related Explanation and Notes that will be made Publicly Announced” as sanctioned by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK

EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORRESPONDING ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE RELATED PERIOD
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE OF THE BANK

EXPLANATORY DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S LIMITED REVIEW REPORT
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The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements and the explanatory footnotes and disclosures for the nine months,
unless otherwise indicated, are prepared in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TRY”), in accordance with the Communiqué on
Bank’s Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards, related communiqués and the Bank’s records, and have been independently reviewed and presented as attached.

November 4, 2010

H. Ersin OZINCE lil EROGLU Omer ERYILMAZ

Chairman of Executive Vice President Head of Financial
Board of Directors e | Manager In Charge of Financial Reporting  Control Department

Kemal Serdar Disgi

Member of Audit Committee

Contact information of the personnel in charge for addressing questions about this financial report:

Name-Surname / Title : Ayse Nazlica / Head of Budgeting and Planning
Telephone Number :(212) 334 51 94

Tiirkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankas: A.§.
Meclisi Mebusan Cad. 81 Findikh 34427 Istanbul Tel: (212) 334 50 50 Faks: (212) 334 52 34
www.tskb.com.tr
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI ALS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2610

{Amounis expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {T1.) unless otherwise staled,)

SECTION ONE
SENERAL INFORMATION

L

il

Banl’s Incorporation Date, Beginning Statue, Changes in the Existing Statue

The Bank was established in accordance with the decision of President of the Republic of Turkey
numbered 3/11203 on 12 May 1950, This decision was declared by T.R. Office of Prime Ministry
Procedures Directorate Decision Management on 12 May 1950,

According to the classification set out in the Banking lLaw No: 5411, the statute of the Bank is
“DPevelopment and Investment Bank™. The Bank does not have the license of “Accepting Deposit™.
Since the establishment date of the Bank, there is no change in its “Development and Investment
Bank™ status.

Explanations Regarding Bank’s Sharcholding Structure, Shareholders Holding Direetly or
Indirectly, Collectively or Individually, the Managing and Controlling Power and Changes in
Current Year, if any and Explanations on the Controlling Group of the Bank

Tiirkiye Is Bankas: A.S. has the authority of managing and controlling power indirectly or directly,
alone or together with other shareholders, Sharcholders of the Bank are as follows:

Current Period Share Shareholding  Paid in Unpaid
Name Surname/Commercial Tiile Capital Rate (%)  Capital Capital
T. Is Bankas) A.S. Group 350.48] 50,07 350.481

T. Valaflar Bankasi T.A.O. 58.642 838 58.642

Under Custedy at Merkezi Kayit Kurulusu

(Other Institutions and Individuals) 200.804 41,55 290,804

Physically Under Custody

(Other Institutions and Individuals) 13 - 13

Total o 700.000 100,00 700.000

Prior Period Share Sharcholding  Paid in Enpaid
Name Surname/Comimercial Title Capital Rate (%) Capital Capital
T. Is Bankast A.S. Group 300.720 50,12 300.720

T. Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 50.265 8,38 50.265

Under Custody at Merkezi Kayn Kurulusa

(Other Institutions and Individuals) 249.002 41,50 249.002

Physically Under Custody

{Other Institutions and Individuals) 13 - i3

Total 600.000 100,00 600.000




TURKIYE SINAF KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (11 unless othenwvise stated.)

SECTION ONE (Cont’d)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

H1.  Explanations Regarding the Chairman and the Members of Board of Directors, Audit
Committee, General Manager and Assistant General Managers and Their Shares in the Bank

Title (%)
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Members of the Board of Directors

Members of the Board of Directors
and General Manager

Members of Audit Committee

Executive Vice Presidents

Statutory Auditors

Changes

Title

Vice Chairman and Member of
Board of Directors

Member of Board of Directors
Statutory Auditors

Name and Surname

H. Ersin Ozince

Murat Vulican (¥%)

Yavuz Canevi
Mustafa Baran Tuncer

Frtan Burhanettin Kantar

Kemal Serdar Digli
Murat Bilgic
Yonca Kogak (¥#%#)

Memduh Aslan Akcay(¥#*
Uygar Safak Ogiin (¥%)

Halil Eroglu
Kemal Serdar Dighi
Murat Bilgi¢
Semseddin Arat

A.Orhan Begkok
Seniz Yarcan

Burak Akgiic
Omer Bryllmaz

&

Cigdem igel
Utuk Bala Yiicel

Vollan Kublay {##5+%)

Mete Uluyurt

Kadir Akgiz (%)

Stileyman Kallkan {*%*

Zeynep Hansu Ugar (%
Remzi Altinok (¥*#%)

(%} The shares of above direciars in the Bank are symibolic.
(*%) In the Board of Directors meeiing with munber 1932 held on 2 April 2010, resignation of Kadiv Akgéz, the member of the Board of Directors, was
approved, U, Safuk Ogiin and Murat Vulkan were elected as members aof the Board of Directors, On 13 April 2000, U, Sufuk Ogiin and Murat Yelkan
have started their duties as members of the Board of Divectors. Murat Vilkean swas elected Vice Chaivinan aof the Board of Divectors on 13 June 2010,

{557) Stileyviman Kalkan resigned his duty of member of the Board of Directors on 19 March 2010,
{#%5%) Remzi Altinok resigned on 21 July 2000 and Yonca Kogak was elecied within the frame of Turkish Commercial Law Article No.315 on 18 Augriest

2010 has started her duties.

Academic
Background

Undergraduate

Undergraduate

Postgraduate
Doktorate
Undergraduate
Undergraduate
Postgraduate
Undergraduate
Posteraduate
Postgraduoale

Undergraduate
Undergraduate
Postgraduate
Postgraduate

Postgraduate
Undergraduate

Undergraduate
Undergraduate

Undergraduate
Indergraduate

Undergraduate
Posteraduate

Experience in

Management Before
Appointment

Task

CEO

Information
Technology and
Human Resources
Technical Services
Treasury, Investment
Banking and
Lxternal Relation
Corporate Marketing
Financial Contro}
and Securitics
Operations

lL.oans

Auditor
Auditor

. Safak Ogiin
Murat Vulkan
Volkan Kublay
Yonca Kogak

Banking and

33 years

28 years

13 years
28 years
16 years
19 years
15 years
20 years
17 years
15 years

24 years

19 years
15 years
23 years

19 years
16 years

14 years
20 vears
17 years
20 years

11 years
12 years

(*F5%)  the Board of Bireciors meeting held on I October 2000 Memdul Astan Akeay resigned his dry of member of Bacrd of Direciors and Mehmet Vidkon
was elected within the frame of Turkish Commercial Law Article No. 315, On 21 Ociober 2000 Mehumer Coghun Cangas has staried his duties.
("TEERE) deynep Heasi Ugar resigned on 10 August 2010 and Volken Kublay was appotited within the frame of Turkish Commercial Lav Article No.351.



TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD T JANUARY ~ 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {71) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION ONE (Coent’d)
GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

V.

Information about the Persons and Institations that have Qualified Shaves

T. Is Bankasy A.S. (Is Bank) Group owns the qualified shares that control the Bank’s capital directly
or indirecily.

Current Period Share Sharcholding  Paid in Unpaid
Name Surname/Commercial Tidle Capital Rate (%) Capiial Capital
T. Is Bankasi A.S. Group 350.481 50,07 350.481

T. Vak:flar Bankas: T.A.O, 58.642 8,38 58.642

Under Custody at Merkezi Kayit Kuralusu

{Other Institutions and Individuals) 290.864 41,55 290.864

Physically Under Custody

{Other Institutions and individuals) 13 - 13

Total 700,000 100,00 700.000

Prior Period Share Shareholding  Paid in Unpaid
Name Surname/Commercial Title Capital Rate (%)  Capital Capital
T. Is Bankast A.S. Group 300.720 50,12 300.720

T. Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 50.265 8,38 50.265

Under Custody at Merkezi Kayit Kurulusu

{Other Institutions and Individuals) 249.002 41,50 249,002

Physically Under Custody

{Other nstitutions and Individuals) 13 - 13

Total GO0.000 100,00 600.000

Summary on the Bank’s Functions and Areas of Activity

Tirkiye Siai Kalkinma Bankast A.$. (“the Bank™) is the first private investment and development
bank which was established by the Council of Ministers’ resolution number of 3/11203 established
in 1950 with the support of World Bank, T.R. Government, T.R. Central Bank and commercial
banks. As per the articles of association published in the Official Gazette on 2 June 1950, the aim
of TSKB is to support ail private sector investments but specifically industrial sectors, to help
domestic and foreign capital investors to {inance the new firms and to help the development of
Turkish capital markets. The Bank is succeeding its aim of developing private sector by giving,
consulting, giving technical support and financial intermediary services.

The Bank, which operates as a non-deposit accepting bank, played a major role on manufacturing
and finance sectors in every phase of the economic development of Turkey. The Bank has
supported the development of the private sector by extending medium-term loans to more than
4,000 firms. Since 1960’s the Bank had continued to finance over 100 firms by investing in these
entities as a sharcholder. The Bank has also participated in improvement of capital markets by
organizing public offerings of some firms.

The Bank has opened two branches in {zmir and Ankara in April 2006 to enhance marketing and
valuation operations.

TSKB Bahrain Branch, is the only branch of TSKB in abroad, started its operations on 18 January
2005 after obtaining the off-shore banking license from Bahrain Central Bank {(BMA) on 30
December 2004, The mission of the branch is to expand to Middle East and exercise all activities
including capital market transactions and giving foreign currency loans.

a2



TUORKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT of FINANCIAL POSITION)
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

{Amounts exnressed in thousands of Twrkish Lira (1) unless otherwise stated. )

Reviewed Andited
Carrent Period Pricr Period
30 September 2016 31 Becember 2009
ASSETS Note Ref, Tl LC Total T I Totat
L CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK (1)) 1568 52,3458 54213 566 20,504 L0
11. FINANCIAL A S AT PV OTHROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Net) (23 94,733 14,935 105.668 38,510 1262 42,772
2.1 Frading fmancial asscls 04,733 141,935 165,668 38.510 4,262 42,772
211 Public sector debl securitics 59.053 - 59.053 30,936 - 34,956
2.1.2 Share certificales 27743 - 27745 - - -
213 Dervative financial assets held for wading 7405 1935 18540 7.02) 4,262 11.283
214 Chher marketable securities 534 - 3530 533 . 533
12 Financial asseis ar fair value through profic and loss - - - . - .
2201 Publie secior debt securities - . P . - -
22 Share centificates - - - - - B
223 Other marketable secuntics - . - - - -
224 Loms - - - - - -
HER BANKS {3) 62,7192 86,695 149,487 121.623 33.385 155,008
BV, MONEY MARRKET PLACEMENTS - - B - - -
4.1 Interbank moency market placements - - - - - -
42 Istanbul Stock Exchange money market placements - - - - - -
4.3 Receivables lrom reverse repurchase agreements - - - - - -
v, FINANCIAL ASS AVAILABLE FOR SALL (Net) {h 1.617.954 466,958  2.084.912 1654273 492,976 2.147.249
5.1 Share ceriificales 33.886 2.957 36843 18.329 2.957 21286
5.2 Pubhc seetor debt securilics 1.564.943 346.090 1911033 1.614.947 350.088 1.965.035
53 Other marketable securities 19125 117911 137030 20,997 139.931 160.928
VI LOANS {3} L342016 2417639 3.919.650 1.649.799 2.169.835 3,819,634
6.1 Loans 1302016 2417634 3.919.050 1.649.799 2.169.835 3.819.634
6.1.1 Loans Lo risk group of the Bank 182.734 95,153 277.887 204.013 71940 281,953
6.1.2 Pubiic sector debl securities - - B - - -
6.1.3 Other 1319282 2322481 3.641.763 1.445.78¢ 2091.893 3.537.681
6.2 Takipteki Krediler 11.090 14.496 25,586 15.990 5.685 21.673
6.3 Specifie provisions (-) (11.090) {14.496) (25.586) {15.990) (5.685) (21.675)
AU FACTORING RECEIVABLES - . - - - -
VI HELD TO MATURETY INVESTMENTS (Nef) €53} 294,983 - 294.983 280.52¢9 - 280,524
8.1 Public sector debt securities 294983 - 294.983 280.529 - 280,529
8.2 Other markelable sceurities - - . - . .
IX. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net) (7 125.362 - 125.362 191,656 - 101.686
9.1 Accounted for under equily method - - - - - -
02 Unconsohidated associntes 125.362 - 125.362 107,680 - 101.686
9.21 Finaneial investments 124,679 . 124,679 93.406 - 93406
022 Non-financial investments 683 - 683 B.280 - 8.280
N, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIIHARIES (Net) 1€} 136.038 - 136,038 142.539% - 142,539
HA Lincomsolidated Nnancial subsidiaries 135,426 - 135.426 12,160 - 142,160
102 Uneonsolidated non-Tinancial subsidiaries 612 - 612 379 - 379
X1 ENTETIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL (JOENT VENT.} (Net) (9} - - - - . -
111 Consahidated wunder cquity wethod . - - . - -
11.2 Uinconsohidated - - - - . -
1E2.0 Financial subsidiaries - - . - - -
1122 Non-financial subsidiare . - . P - -
XL EEASE RECEIVABLES (Net) 1)} - 78ATT 78477 274 134803 135076
12,1 Finance lease receivables - 81,629 81.629 285 1:41.568 1471853
12.2 Operating lease receivables N . . . N .
123 Other . - - - - -
124 Unearned meome (- ) - (3.152) (3.152) (1) (6,703} (6.7773
XL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS FOR HEDGING PURPOSES {in - - - - . -
13.1 Fair value hedge - - - - - -
132 Cash Now hedpe - - - - - -
133 Hedge of net investment in foreipn aperations - - - - - -
XEV.  TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 16,451 2 16,453 22222 1 22,223
XV, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 464 - 464 518 - 518
15.1 Goodwill - - - - - -
15.2 Other 464 - 464 518 - 518
XVL  INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Net) (2 . - - . - .
XV FAX ASSEY {13y 16.323 - 16.323 2517 - 25.117
17.1 Current Lax assel - . . - . .
17.2 Deferred tax asset 16.523 . 16,323 25.117 - 235117
NVIL ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Net) (14 - - . - . .
18.1 Assets held for sale - - . - - -
182 Assets of discontinued operations - - - - - -
NIX. OTHER ASSETS (15) 5173 13,624 18,797 1.540 2368 11,208
TOTAL ASSETS 3874457 3126.670 7,000,827 4.039.493 2,865.136 6.9404.629

The accompanying aotes are an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,



TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT of FINANCIAL POSITION)
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Liva (1) unless otherwise staled.)

Roeviewed
Curreni Period

30 September 2016

Audited
Prior Period

31 Becember 2009

LIABILITIES Note Ref, 1, ¢ ‘Fatad FL. IC Total
1. DEPOSITS (1} - - - - - -
il Beposils from Risk Group of the Bank - - - - - -
1.2 Other - - - - - -
H B DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HEED FOR FRADING (2} 5.922 LGOS 16.537 L 4707 11978
il FENDS BORROWED (3) 100G 4417646 118,646 LS8 4.304.057 4.328.215
v, MONEY MARKET BALANCES 851,790 71253 920,043 1,238,284 36,409 1.28.1.693
4.1 Interbank money market taking - - - - - B
1.2 Istnbul Stock Exchange money mwket takings - - - - - -
43 Fands provided under repurchise agreenients 831,790 77,253 929.043 B238. 284 46409 1.284.693
V. MARKITABLE SECURITIES ISS1D (Nel) 191,985 - 181,985 - - -
LA Bills 191,985 - 191,985 - -
5.2 Asset backed secwritics - - - - -
5.3 Bends - - - -
V1. TUNDS - - - -
0.4 Borrower funds - - - - - -
6.2 Others - - - B - -
Vil SUNDRY CREDITORS 48,294 22.481 0775 37071 34917 82088
Vil OTHER LIABILITIES {1 - - - - - -
IX. FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - -
X LEASE PAVABLES (Net) [8)] - - - - - -
10.1 Finance lease payables - 2 2 - 3 3
14.2 Operating lease payables - - - - - -
10.3 Other - - - - - -
10.4 Peferred linance lease expenses (- ) - (2) (2) - (3) {3)
BERFVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR HEDGING
XE PURPOSES {6) - - - B - -
111 Fair value hedpe - - - - - -
1.2 Casl: flow hedpe - - - - -
L3 Hedge of net inveshisent in foreigit operations - - - - - -
XIL PROVISIONS Y] £6.091 - §6.091 96,737 101 96.838
121 General loan loss provisions 35813 - 35813 33.463 - 33.463
12.2 Restracturing provisions - - - - - -
123 Resernve for employee benefits 3.453 - 3.453 2980 - 2.980
12.4 Insuranee technical reserves {Ney) - - - - - -
125 Othier provistons 46.825 - 46.825 60.294 101 60,395
XIE TAX LEABILITY N 14.344 - 14,344 14,679 - 14.679
3.1 Current 1ax Hability 14344 - 14544 1,670 - 14.679
132 Deferred tax hability - - - B - -
X1V PAYABLES RELATED TO ASSEFS HELD FOR 5ALYE AND
DISCONTENUELD OPERATIONS - - - - - -
4.1 Held for sate - - - - -
142 Discentinued operations - - - - - -
XV, SUBORDINATED LOANS (8) - 13,542 73542 - 75,343 75.343
4yl SHAREHQLDERS' EQUITY [§1U)] LIGZS00 3304 1.199.864 1.027.494 13.301 1,046,795
16,1 Pakl-in capital 700.000 - 00000 500.000 - 600,600
6.2 Capital reserves 72,153 37304 HI9.437 68810 13.301 2011
16.2.1  Share premium - - . - - -
1622 Share eancellation profits - - - - - -
16,23 Marketable securities value incrcase fund H0.605 37.304 TG 40,058 13.361 53,359
16,24 Tangible assets revaluation differences 31374 - KIRNE 28378 - 28378
16.2.5  Intangible assels vevatuation differences - - - - - -
1626 Investiment property revahnation differences - - - - -
16,27 Bonus shares oblained from associates, subsidiavies and jointly conurolled
snfities (Joint Vent.) - - - -
1628 Hedging fiunds (EMective portion} - - - - -
16.2.9  Accumulated valuaiion differences from assels held for sale and from
discontinued operations B - - - - -
16230 Onher capital veserves 3 - 374 374 B 374
16.3 Profil reserves 221736 - 221936 183.796 - 183,796
1631 Legal reserves 73.559 - 73,559 55,900 - 55,900
1632 Statitery reserves 36,929 - 36.929 28,184 - 28,184
16.3.3  Expaordimary rescrves 108.328 - 108,328 96.792 - 96.792
16.34  Other profil reserves 2920 - 2920 2.920 B 2920
16.4 Profit or loss 168.671 - 108.671 174.888 - 174,888
10.4.1 Prior years' income/losses - - - - - -
16,42 Cuveent year income/ioss 168,611 - 168,671 174,888 - 174,888
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2301986 4.638.841 7000827 2,145,794 458835 6.904.624

The accompanying votes are an integral part of these unconsofidated financial statements,



TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKAST ALS.
UNCONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET I'TEMS
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

fAmounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

Reviewed Corrent Pevied Andited Prior Peviod
30 September 2004 31 Becember 2009
Note Rel, 11, I Totaf T FO Talal
A GFF BALA BEET CONTINGENCIES AND

COM; S (11§43 1.328.007 4645307 5,969,314 $68.073 2,985,363 3.923.436
1 GUARANI AND COLLATERALS () 383,433 733.357 3.417.290 344963 371420 T16.383
11 Leters of pmantec 3075063 425,058 T26.823 268,406 80335 357,761
PP Guarantees subject to State Temter Law - - . . . .
P2 Guarantees given for loro trade operations - . - - - -
P  Othen letiers of guarantee 301163 423,638 TH 825 268406 89,333 357761
b2 Bank loans - . . - . .
21 hapon lewers of aceeptance - . . - . -
122 Other bank aceeptances - - - . - -
13 Lewiers of credit - T 2H U - 150.32) 180,321
15t Dacumentasy letters of eredit N 20744 2H0. 744 - 180321 [80.321
1372 {hber Jeteers of credi - . N N N .
1.4 Prefimancing given as goarantes - - . - . -
Ps Endorsements - - - - - -
E5 1 Endorsements to the Cential Bank of Turkey - - . - . .
a2 Other endorsements - . . . . -
16 Securities issue purcliase guarantees . - . . . .
17 FaCOnng guaramecs . . . . . .
18 82768 96,953 179723 76.557 101744 178.301
19 ther collaterals . - - - - .
1. CONMITMENTS 402,063 IS8T 1.£60.850 339.788 200600 860,388
2t irrevorable connpimaents TEA9 239.64% Myary 1531520 160 802 311328
211 Forwwrd asset purchase and sales commiiments T1.999 239.648 Jt1.ad7 1541526 160,802 311.338
212 Forward deposit purcliase ind sales comntitments - - . - . .

293 Shave capital commtiintent (0 associates and subsidiaries - . - . -
214 Loan garanting commitments . R - R - .
245 Securities underwiit COMINILmEDES 5.500 - 5.504) - - -

216 Commitments fos reserve deposit requiremens - . - . -
217 Payment commitinent for checks - . - - - .

218 Tax and fund liabilities from expont commitments - - . . - .
21y Commiments o oredit card expenditure limits - . . . . .
Commatments [or promotions selated with credit cards and banking

2110 activities - - - - - -
2111 Receivables from shert sale commizments - - - - - -
2.1 17 Payabies for shon sile commitments - - - - . -
2,113 Other irevogabie commitments - - - - - -
2.2 Revocable convnitments 324.504 519.139 843703 189.262 359798 549.060
2721 Revocable loan granting commitnents 324.564 319,139 %43.703 189,262 359798 349,000
222 Other revocable comaniinents - - - - - -
. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 542.011 3.049,163 6017 243,312 2063343 2,346,665
3 Derivanve fnanctat instiuments for hedging purposes - - - - - -
311 Fair vislue hedpe - - - - - -
312 Cash flow hedge - - - - . -
313 Hedpe of net investment i foreign operations - - - - - -
32 Held for tradmg transaciions 342,011 3149163 3691174 283322 2.063.543 2.340.665
Forwaid fareign currency buyisell nansactions - - - - -
Forward R CHrEney | ictions-tnty - - - - - -
! Forward L carreney transacthions- sell - - - - - -
Swap wansactions rekated o E¢ amd interest rates 245,345 FAS003 988348 107972 2 254103
Fureign curency swips-buy 57.593 250985 347,578 72943 42,886 123829
? Fareign currency swips-selt 185,752 160,680 346438 33009 58,786 E23.815
Inreresy vare swaps-bay - 147,160 147.166 - 2,238
Interest rage swips-selt - 147,166 147,166 - 231t
Foreign carency, neiest it and securities options 236,612 633,842 70,434 129.550 251,006 380336
Forewn corrency options-buy 129736 280,933 A10.009 64775 96.438 161,203
! Foreign currency oplions-sell 106.876 295139 405013 61775 96428 161207
EMerest vate aptons-buy - 27385 275385 - 29075 19.075
Interest rate options-setl - 27.385 27.383 - 29075 2WOIS

Securines aptions-buy - - - - .
it - - - - -
Forcign cutrency futuses - . . . . N
Fareign currency fitures-buy - - . - . -
Forgsgn curreney futures-self - . - .
Interest rare ftures - F300.958 L500.958 - 1.643.66) 1643661
Interest rate futures-luy - - - . - .

Securities aptims-s

3252 Interest rate futeres-selt - 1.500.958 1.500.958 - 1.643.001 1.6:43.661
326 Other 62,054 269.360 330414 45,800 22455 68.255
1. CUSTODY AND PLEDGED SECURITIES (IV+V4¥]y 2.913.344 32.921.660 35,835,004 2.940.808 22,335,799 25076607
v, ITEMS HELD IN (¢ rony 1.208.729 21,619 1.330.348 1,704,499 105,283 1,309,782
al Assers nixder maagement 7.572 288 7810 7513 IR 8.692
4.2 Investmen secaritics hekd in custady 345.277 121331 466,608 360219 304404 464,323
4.3 Checks recerved for collection 142 - 142 152 - 152
44 Commescial notes received for colfection - - - - - -
45 Chlier assets recenved For collection B - - - - -
4.6 Assers received {or public ofteing - - - - - -
47 Other items under custady 13,104 B 18,104 4.592 - 4,592
48 Custodians $37.684 - 837.084 1332023 - 1332023
V. PLEDGED ITEMS 1.329.816 19.926.665 21,256,442 963.513 11,463,226 12.426.739
51 Marketable securiies s 706641 06756 20 513.643 513.603
§2 Guaralee notes 41,906 i413.592 1 458 498 40,724 1.524 7128 1.571.452
53 Comnodity - - - - - -
54 Warranty - - - - - -
55 Propeities 81510 3.886.670 3.968.180 107.369 3.883.502 3.990.93)
56 Other pledged items 1,203,283 13.919.702 15123047 809.400 5.541.293 6.330.693
57 Piedged nems-depository - - - ~ - -
vl ACCEPTED INDEPENDENT GUARANTEES AND

WARRANTIES 374.799 12,573,376 13.248.175 270796 1).567.290 10,840,086

TOTAL OFF BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS (A43) 4,241,351 37.562.967 41,804,318 3.908.881 25,091,162 29,000,043

The accompanying notes are an integrad part of these unconsolidated finaneial statements.
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TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASK A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (1T1.) unless otherwise stated.)

Reviewoed Reviewed Reviewed Reviewed
Current Period Prior Period Current Peried Prior Period
Note L.Fanuary — F January -~ 1.July - 1.July —
Ref, 30 September 2010 30 Seyptember 2004 30 September 2010 30 September 2009

1. INTEREST INCOME (1) 327.1%0 396.317 110,295 $22.104
[ Interest on loans 139.421 184716 43,573 44,183
1.2 Interest received from reserve deposils 17 146 H 7
1.3 Inlgrest recerved rom banks 6.918 3761 2.835 742
] Inlerest received from money market phcemenis 104 65 37 10
1.5 Inlerest received from markelable secarities portfolic 177.542 200.379 60836 15336
131 Finsnesal assels held for srading 3002 1,901 88 1198
L322 Fiancial assets at fair value tirough profit and joss - - - -
153 Available-Tor-sale financial assets 148,849 190.714 51.229 0,739
154 hrvestments held-lo-maturity 25.591 7,764 8.619 3.399
1.6 Finanee lease income 2790 7.210 803 1.809
1.7 Other interest income 398 70 203 17
il INTEREST EXPENSES 2) (99.949) {206,552) (33,163) (42.508)
21 Intercst on deposits - - - -
22 Interest on funds borrowed (33.995) {132.562) (11.903) {18.815)
23 irterest on money market borrowings (64.199) (73.64G) (19.511) {23.944)
24 haterest on securities issued (1.746) - {1.746) -
2.5 Other inlerest expense 9] (404} (3) (145}
Y. NET INTEREST INCOME (I-11) 227,241 189.765 77.132 10,196
Iv. NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME 7.926 4.597 2.168 1.973
4.1 Fees and commissions received 9.570 5.288 2742 2.162
411 Non-cash loans 3.362 2,338 1.504 764
412 Qther 6.208 2.950 3.238 1,398
4.2 Fees and commissions paid (1.644) (691) (574) (189}
421 Non-cash loans {2) 3] {H (n
422 Other (1.647) (689) (573) (188}
V. DIVIBEND INCOMIL 22,6835 18.969 3 450
VI, NET TRADING INCOMIZ &) (1.384) 2.946 {3.141) 267
6.1 Securilies trading gains/ (losses) (4.177) 2,401 (2.480) 639
6.2 IBerivative finamcial instruments pains/losses (594) 2.241 {2.070) (3.2300
63 Foreign exchange gais/losses {(net) 3.387 {1.696) 1409 2,858
VIl OTHER OPERATING INCOME 1) 20,198 21,615 12.338 2,568
vin TOFAL OPERATING INCOME (IN+IV+VVI+VIE 276,664 237.892 88.528 84,454
IX. PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - (5) (18.453) (38.573) {12,379} {20.936)
X. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) ) (44.833) (38.56:4) {14.761} {11.291)
X1 NET OPERATING INCOMEALOSS) (VI1I-IX-X} 213.378 160,755 61.388 52.227
XL AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER . . - R
NI PROFIT/{L0SS) ON EQUITY METHOD - - - B
XIVe  GAIN/(LOSS) ON NET MONETARY POSITION - - -
XV, PROFITALOSSY FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE

TAXES (XI+XT1+XITHXIY) (8) 213,318 F00LT55 61.388 32227
NV TAX PROVISION FOR CONTINUED QPERATIONS (1) (N {44.707) (27.878) (15,180} {10.144)
161 Provision for current icome 1axes {39.232) (51.913) (12131 (22.047)
162 Provision for defomed taxes (5.473) 24.005 (3.019) 11.903
KWL NET PROFITALOSS) FROM CONTINUED OPERATIONS

(XVaXVI]) 168,671 132877 46.208 42,083
XVIHL INCOME ON DISCONTINUED OFPERATIONS - - - -
i8] Income on assets held for sale - - - -
i8.2 Income on sale of associates, subsidiaries and joinly controlled entines

(Joinl vent.) -
18.3 Inceme on other discontinued operations - B
XIX.  LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED QPERATIONS (-) - -
£ JLoss from assets held for sale - -
19.2 Loss on sale of associates, subsidiaries and jointly controlled entitics

{Foinl vent.) - -
19.3 Loss from other discontinucd operations - - B
XX, PROFIT /{LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE

TAXES (XVIILXIX) - - -
XXEL FAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS() - .
211 Provision for current income taxes - -
21.2 Provision Tor deferred taxes - N .
XX NET PROFIT/ALOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(ANEXXKT) - - - -
XX, NETPROFIT/AOSS (XVIHXNI) )] 168.671 132.877 46.208 42,083

Earnings/(tosses) per share 0,24 0,22 0,07 0,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.



TORKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (1.0 unless otherwise stated.)

PROFIT AND LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER SHAREHOLDER'S LQUITY

Reviewed
Currvent Period
I Januagy -
30 September 2010

Reviewed
Prior Periog
1 January -
30 Sceptember 2009

1 ADDETIONS TO MARKETABLE SECURITIES REVALUATION BHFFERENCES FOR

AVAILABLE FOR SALE TAL ASSETS 15.386 10440040
il TANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFE - -
i INTANGIBLE A s REVALUATIOND : -
V. TRANSLATION DIFFERENC T hY NS IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
v, GAIN/LOSS ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR CASH FLOW

HEDGES

(effective portion of fair value differences)
V1. GAINLOSS ON DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR HEDGES OF NET

INVESTMENT IN FORESGN OPERATIONS

{effective portion)
Vil EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CORRECTIONS OF

ERRORS - -
VL OTHER PROFITAOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER SHARENOLDERS

EQUITY A% PER TAS 12.482 ILB15
IXo  DEFERRED TAX OF VALUATION DIFFERENCES (3319 (18.869)
X. NET PROFITLOSS ACCOUNTED FOR DIRECTLY UNDER SHAREHGLDERS!

EQUITY (1411+.,,+IX) 24519 115,986
XL CURRENT YEAR PROFIT/LOSS 168,671 132.877
110 Netchanges in fair value of seeuritics (Reeyeled (o Profit.oss) 63 2704
112 Reclassification of and recycling derivatives accomted for cash Now hedge purposes 1o Income

Statement

113 Reeyeling hedge of net investments i forcign operations to Inconie Statement - -
114 Other 168.608 129.163
NIL - TOTAL PROFIT/AOQSS ACCOUNTED FOR THE CURRENT PERIOD {X::X1) 193,220 248,863

‘The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements,



*SIUBUIEIS [RIIUBLI] PIIVPHOSHCIUN 2531 Jo 1ird (waSadi ue 2.1v $2)01 SuIA0edwodde ay |

FUR'GaT] - POgTeatl - - - RIS HUETLL - Wig'T GTGIE - - Fif VDL PR FUs0Y
- - - - - - - - g 7e) - - 9E8 9T s - - - -
[zt r . Sl - . - - N 2] v - i - - - - - - -
(ISEFEd - (Te1red - . - - - Zewes) - - SLSYT LY 65y - - - - UBHAULISD g
1L . RN - . - - - - iL9891 - . . - - - - - FOIEL LIN PELIIE
- . - - - - . - - - - . - . - - - - 310
- . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - puided u-paed o u 0 29352 21y 4,
. . - . . - - - - - - - - - - - - - skgoad uezeRaued 2suyg
. - B - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - UL J2YY
- - - . - - - - SEEIESH - - JEE Y - . - . - SINTCS [
- - - - - - - - Gpss) . - {sst) - - - - - [EH T Budaduy padey
R . . . - - - - . . - N . . - - - - o w3y ur dBuTyd Jir 139135 g,
. . . - - - . - - - - - - - - - - - BESSNTNE
- - - . - - . - - - - - - - - - - - XAMEALIPIP FRUCYIVI UHa g
- . . N . - . - - - - - . - - - - - {1004, FnE) Sa5IRd PAaeIued Gupd par
SRS FAL W) PIVEIGE AR YAULE) 1A
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - ERALRESTIEE IR TR AR R e TR O | ‘1A
- - - - - - 96iT . (96: - - - - - - - - - SIMMIP LONENER AT XIS HRERUL ), A
. - - . - N - - - - - - - - - - - - (uurod 2viaMyg) dumpay AL
T - neg v7 R - . - - - - - - - - - - - DUy IERLIGE JULL SUPLIT RO, 10l
N - - - - . - - - - - - - - - - . - LTI Y DI I ; ImE 1
- - - - - B - - - - - - - - - - - - porsd sy Souanp s3iuey)y
- S6prl - - - [T SY8°rLL - uI6T T62Y6 106"5S - - rig Qi Mmurjrg duielyy k!
HIHT APAddg G - pOLIAg WALLnRD
HTTYGG - [ radptlcld) - = - 65705 M UZ6'T THLIG FeLst funmes N - [ty [ty TG FAK0LY
- N T T z = - B T - - T = E B B - B IS
- - - - - - - - - - el 6re s - M M M SDAIDEDI O] SINSkL
ot - - - - - - - - - - B - - - PIRGHISIE SPIapLg
(oo T - - - - - - - - Sloi - - - - UG LIITG 301
cieTel . - - . - . - LiTel - - - - - - - - HOUIW 10 PeiTy
- - - - . - - - - - - - - - - - - EER Y
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - trsaded o-pred uo BofER JO 12310 1L
- - - - - . B - - - - - - - - - - - <5308 UDUTPIIITI A2ENG
- - - - - - - - - - - - - B - - - - [amwst WG
- - - - - - - - o) - - taout) - - - - - AT SS2LROS RUNLE
. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - [Z18]
- - - - - - - - {mag) - - {oune) - - - - - [EETITE auezasul ey
. . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Azpnbio 5 2pune vo sazEose o sannba uy 3eeyd 0 32033 24 L
. . . . - - - . - - - - - . - - - - XTI JO UOTIRHITIIL g 3,
. - - - - B - - - - - - - - - - - - Spausy 40 fesodsap gy
- - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - - - LRSI NG R Tt R R R TR ]
. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - £u2,), JHI00) ¥IBUS gA0Au0d SRnef pur
FHIVIPISGRY NDTRIIT WOI] PIMENLD X2L0YS X0MOY A
. B - - - - - - - - - - - - B - - - SIJUSIZTJIP VULLNEADD SEISE DGIG L) 1A
. . - - - - - - - - - - - - - B - - SODUIINPFET LFER[EADD STINNE DQITUR Y A
- - - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - SLon o L] ul REESDANN (02 [0 SpSH Tt
. . - . - . - . - - - - - - - - - - SEPG M-S ¢
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - {uopiaod dandayy) Sulipoy ‘Al
95ETE1T - 98611 - - - - 9BESE - - - - - - - - - . (et DEURIIUL INGE L XIIAIN JLBIRAREY kil
i - - . - . - - . - - - - - - - - - ARARE L) PR NIID(] ; Mty T
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - pootd 33 Bunnp sadavgy
L5608 . L5T0¥L - - - 18651 - fidoxd 6iL66 SETIT T - - rig B0 saurpg deaadey il
GUAT FJEANEIT f ~ HILLD DL
(330r3) {s307) sy RAREY ALIGI S.HIATOHDUYHS NI SHDNVH Y
7 om0t 1N FRNONI RN IN[ED WEEIOTING Joy e
S1058Y goLng oLag
BIL e oud LNy

e o

{"PaT81S 28 TMIDUI0 SSoJUN () BIF] US| [0 SPUBSTION] Ul possoIdxa Sjunoliy )

0107 HAEWHILLES 0f JAANA JOTdHd HINGW-ININ HHL 304
ALINOT NISEONVHD 40 INFIWILVLS GELVAI'TOSNODNA
"§V ISVINVE VIANIN TV I¥NIS JATINL



TURKIVE SINAL KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SE PTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands

ated.)

(1L anles

s otlier

Raviewed
Current Period
3) September 2010

Reviewed
Frior Period

30 September 20409

A CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

1.3 Operating profit befere changes in operating assets and linbilities 185,431 115.042
P11 Inerest received 331,724 382,426
112 baterest paid (108.017) (204.385)
113 Davidends recetved 31206 2.057
114 Fees and commissions received 09,570 5288
LES Other meome 18.932 15.950
116 Collections from previcushy writken ofT loans 4.935 1.o047
117 Payments o personnel and service suppliers (35.048) (34 173)
1 Taxes pad (27010 (29949
119 Others (12.781} (24.819)
i.2 Changes in operating asseis and Habilities {401.263) 366,497
1.2.1 Net {increase) decrease in financial agsels (54,808} (24.86%)
1.2 Net {increase) decrease in financial assets m faie value through profin o loss - -
1,23 Net finerease) decrease in due from banks and other fimancial institutions - -
124 Net {inerease) deerease in loans {335.827) 138 910
12,5 Net {nerease) deercase i other asseis (36.131) 125 804
1.2.6  Netincrease {deercase) in bank deposits - -
1.27  Net increase {deercase) in other deposits - -
1.2.8  Net increase {deerease) in funds bomrowed 376244 172,764
1.2.9  Netincrease {decrease) inomatured payables -
1.2.10 Net merease {deerease) i other labititics 35040 (16.118)
1. Net eash provided from banling opeaations (215.832} 481,530
B, CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

. Net cash provided from invesging activities 44,851 (564.627)
24 Cash pand for purchase of entities under common control, associates and subsidiaries (233) -
2.2 Cash obtained from sale of entities under common control, assoctares and subsidiaries 15.098 B
23 Fixed asset purchases (28%) (377}
2.4 Fixed asset sales 5140 3RE
2.5 Cash pard for purchase of linanctal assets available for saie 24,980 {567.378)
2.6 Cash oblained from sale of Tinancial assets available for sale - -
27 Cash paid for purchase of investment securinies - -
28 Cash oblamed from sale of investment securitics - -
19 Others {149y

. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

i, Neteash provided from financing activifies 165,842 {2.700)
i Cash oblained from Tunds borrowed and securities ssued 109994 -
32 Cash used for repayment of funds borrowed and sceurities issued B

3.3 Capitad increase . -
34 ividends paid (34.157) {27003
33 Pavments for finance leases - -
3.0 Other - -
1V, Lffect of change in feretan exchange rale oo cash and cash equivalenss 1.19% (1.6%6)
¥, Netinerease / (Geerease) in cash aed eash eqaivalents (4.247) {B7.484}
Vi Cash and cask equivalents at Beginning of the period {57,567 157,519
V1L Cashoand cash equivalents at end of tse period 153,320 70,0358

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these anconsolidated lnancial statements.
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TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI AS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounds expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {T1) unless otherwise stated,)

SECTION THREE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I

Basis of Presentation
Presentation of financial statements:

As prescribed in the Article 37 of the Banking Act No. 5411, banks shall, in line with the
principles and procedures to be established by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(“BRSA”} upon consulting the associations of financial institutions and the Turkish Accounting
Standards Board faking into consideration international standards, ensure uniformity in their
accounting systems; correctly record all their transactions; and timely and accurately prepare their
financial reports in a style and format that will meet disclosure requirements, clearly refiable and
comparable, and suitable for auditing, analysis and interpretation.

The Bank prepares its financial statements and underlying documents according to Communigué
on Banks’ Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards,
Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, other communiqués, pronouncements and explanations
about accounting and {inancial reporting issued by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency,
Turkish Commercial Code and Tax Legisiation,

Amounis in the financial statements, the underlying explanations and disclosures arc expressed in

Thousands of Turkish Lira unless otherwise stated.

The valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements:

The accounting rules and the valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements were implemented as stated in the related regulations, announcements and decrees of
Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financials Reporting Standards and BRSA. These
accounting policies and valuation principles are explained in the below notes through It to XXII1.
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TURKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounis expressed in thousands of Vurkish Lira (1LY unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREFE (Cont*d)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont*d)

il.

Explanations on Usage Strategy of Financial Assets and Foreign Currency Transactiong

The main sources of the funds of the Bank have variable interest raies. The financial balances are
monitored regularly and fixed and variable interest rate placements are undertaken according to
the return on alternative financial instruments. The macro goals related to balance sheet amounts
are set during budgeting process and positions are taken accordingly.

Due to the fact that the great majority of the loans extended by the Bank have the flexibility of
reflecting the changes in market interest rates to customers, the interest rate risk is kept ai
minimum level. Moreover, the highly profitable Eurobond and the foreign currency government
indebtness securities portfolio have the attribute of eliminating the risks of interest rate volatility.

The Bank liquidity is regularly monitored. Moreover, the need of liquidity in foreign currencies is
safeguarded by monetary swaps,

Commercial placements are managed with high return and low risk assets considering the
international and demestic economic expectations, market conditions, creditors’ expectations and
their tendencies, interest rate-liquidity-currency risk and other similar factors. Prudence principle
is adopted in the placement decisions. The fong-term placements are made under project finance.
A credit policy is implemented such a way that harmonizing the profitability of the project, the
collateral and the value add introduced by the Bank.

The movements of foreign exchange rates in the market, inferest rates and prices are monitored
instantaneously. When taking positions, the Bank’s upique operating and control limits are
watched effectively besides statutory limits. Limit overs are not allowed.

The Bank’s strategy of hedging interest rate and foreign currency risks arising from fixed and
variable interest rate funds and foreign currency available for sale securities:

A great majority of foreign currency available for sale securities are financed with foreign
currency  resources. Accordingly, the expected depreciation of local currency against other
currencies is eliminated. A foreign currency basket is in terms of the indicated forei g1 currency o
eliminate the risk exposure of cross currency rates.

To mitigate the interest rafe risk, a balanced asset composition is cstablished in compliance with
the structure of fixed and variable rate funding resources.

The hedging strategies Tor other foreign exchange risk exposures:

A stable foreign exchange position strategy is implemenicd. To be secured from cross currency
risk, the current foreign exchange position is taken by considering a specific basket of foreign
currencies.

The foreign exchange gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are accounted for in the
period of the transaction. Foreign exchange asscts and liabilities are translated to Turkish Lira
using foreign exchange bid rates as of the balance sheet date, and the resuiting gains and losses are
recorded in foreign exchange gains or losses.
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1V,

Iv.

Explanations on Forward and Option Contracts and Derivative Instruments

The Bank is exposed to significant financial risk originating from the changes in the interest and
foreign exchange rates as part of its normal operations, The Bank exercises derivative financial
instruments to manage these interest and foreign exchange financial risks.

The Bank generally exercises foreign currency forward, swap, futures and option agrecments,

The derivative instruments are accounted for at their fair values as of the date of the agreements
entered into and subsequently valued at fair value. Some of the derivative instruments, althou gh
cconomical hedges, are accounted for as trading transactions since they are not qualified to be a
hedging imstrument as per “Financial instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement” (“TAS 397,
Realized gains or fosses are reflected in the statement of income on these derivative instruments.

Interest Income and Expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement for all interest bearing
instruments considering existing principle on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
(the rate that equalizes the future cash flows of financial assets and liabilities to the current net
book value).

In the current period, the Bank adopts discount of future cash flows method by excluding realized
cash flows of financials assets or liabilities for the effective interest rate caleulation. The effect of
this application is accounted as interest income on loans and securities and inferest expense on
funds borrowed in the financial statements in the current period. 1f such change had not been
made, prior period balances of the accounts subject to the change would have been TL, 157.000,
T1. 206.000 and TL. 88.000, respectively.

In accordance with the related regulation, realized and unrealized interest accruals of the non-
performing loans are reversed and interest income related to these loans are recorded as interest
mcome only when cotlected.

Fees and Commission Income and Expenses

Fees and commissions received from cash loans, that are not an integral part of the effective
interest rate, and fees for various banking services are recorded as income when collected, Fees
and commissions paid for the {unds borrowed, which are not integral parts of the effective
interest rate of the funds borrowed, are recorded as expense on the date of the payment.
Excluding these income and expenses, all other income and expenses, fee and commission
income and expenses, including commissions received from non-cash loans are recorded on an
accrual basis.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (T1) unless otherwise stated )

SECTION THREE (Cont'd)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

V1

Explanations and Disclosures on Financial Assets

Financial instruments comprise financial assets, financial liabilities and derivative instruments.
Financial instruments constitute the both of the Bank's trading activities and operations. Risks
related with these instruments constitute majority of total risks. Financial instruments affect
liquidity, market, and credit risks on the Bank’s balance sheet in all respects. The Bank trades
these instruments on behalf of its customers and on its own behalf,

Basically, financial assets create the majority of the commercial activities and operations of the
Bank. These instruments expose, affect and diminish the liquidity, credit and interest risks in the
financial statements.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the seftlement date i.e. the
date that the asset is delivered to or by the Bank. Settlement date accounting requires (a) accountin g
of the asset when acquired by the institation, and (b) disposing of the asset out of the balance sheet on
the date settled by the institution; and accounting of gain or loss on disposal. In case of application of
scltlement date accounting, the entity accounts for the changes that occur in the fair value of the asset
in the period between commercial transaction date and settlement date as in the assets that the entity
settles,

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Changes in fair value of assets to be received during the period between the trade date and (he
settfement date are accounted for in the same way as the acquired assets.

Fair value differences are not accounted for assets valued at cost or amortized cost; gain or loss of
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are reflected in the statement of income; gain
or loss of available for sale assets are accounted for under the shareholders’ equily.

The methods and assumptions used in determining the reasonable estimated values of all of the
financial instruments are explained below.

Cash, Banks and Other Financial Institutions:

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and highly liquid short-term
mvestments with maturity of 3 months or less following the purchase date, not bearing risk of
significant value change, and that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash. The book
values of these assets approximate their fair values.

Marketable Securities:

The Bank classifies its marketable securities in three groups:

Financial assets at fair value through profit_and loss: These transactions are elassified in two
categories. (1) Trading sccurities for the purposes of short term profit {aking through saie or buying
back in a near future. (ii) The financial assets classified at inception as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss by the Bank. The Bank uses such classification above when permitted or for
the purposes of providing a more proper disclosure.

In this category, marketable securitics are measured at fair value on the financial statements. Fajr
values of securities that are traded in an active market are determined based on quoted prices or
current market prices.
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Explanations and Disclosures on Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Any gains or losses resulting from such valuation are recorded in the profit and loss accounts. As
per the explanations of the Uniform Code of Accounts (UCA), any positive difference between the
histarical cost and amortized cost of financial assets are booked under the “Interest Income”
account, and in case the fair value of the asset is over the amortized cost, the positive difference is
booked under the “Gains on Securities Trading” account. If the fair value is under the amortized
cost, the negative difference is booked under the “Losses on Securities Trading” account, Any
profit or loss resulting from the disposal of those assets before their maturity date is recognized
within the framework of the same principles.

Available for sale financial assets are initially recognized at cost including the transaction costs.
The inferest income related to securities with fixed and variable interest under available for sale
financial assets are recorded in interest income from marketable securities. After the initial
recognition, available for sale securitics are measured at fair value and the unrealized gain/loss
originating from the difference between the amortized cost and the fair value is recorded in
“Marketable Securities Value Increase Fund” under the equity. All unquoted available for sale
stocks are recorded by considering impainment, since respective fair values cannat be reliably
measured. At the disposal of available for sale financial assets, value increases/decreases recorded
in the securities value increase fund under equity are transferred to income statement.

Investments held to maturity include securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity where there is an intention of holding fill maturity and the relevant conditions for
fulfiliment of such intention, including the funding ability. This portfolio excludes loans and
receivables. After initial recognition held to maturity investments are measured at amortized cost
by using effective interest rate less impairment losses, if any.

The interests received from held to maturity investments are recorded as interest income in the
income statement,

lL.oans:

Loans are financial assets which have fixed payment or determinable payment tersms and are not
traded in an active market,

Loans are intially recognized at cost and measured at amortized cost by using effective interest
rate. The duties, charges and other expenses paid for the collaterals obtained against loans are
accepted as transaction costs and reflected to customers.

Furkish Lira (“TL”) cash loans are composed of foreign cusrency indexed loans, loans for
marketable securities purchased by customers, working capital loans; foreign currency (“FC”)
cash loans are composed of investment loans, export-financing loans and working capital loans.
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IX.

Explanations and Disclosures on Financial Assets (Cont’d)

Foreign currency indexed loans are converted into TL from the foreign currency rates as of the
opening date and followed in TL, accounts. Repayments are measured with the foreign currency
rates &t the payment date, the forcign currency gains and losses are reflected to the statement of
income.

Provision is set for the loans that may be doubtful and the amount is charged in the current period
income statement as well as their classification to non-performing loans as per the related
regulations. The collections made related to loans including those on non-performing loans are
recorded in “Provision for Loans and Other Receivables” and “Interest Received from Non-
performing Loans™ accounts.

Releases of loan loss provisions are recorded by reversing the provisions booked during the year
and the collections made related to loan losses previously accounted for are recorded to
coliections related to the prior period expenses,

Explanations on Impairment of Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Bank evaluates the carrying value of a financial assct or a group of
financial assets to determine whether there is an objective indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. I any such indication exists, the Bank determines the related
impairment.

A financial asset or a financial asset group incurs impairment loss only if there is an objective
evidence related to the occurrence of one or more than one event (“loss event™) after the first
recognition of that asset; and such loss event {or events) causes, an impairment as a result of the
effect on the reliable estimate of the expected future cash flows of the related financial asset and
asset group. Irrespective of high probability the expected losses for future events are not
recognized.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off,
and when the Bank has the intention of collecting or paying the net amount of related assets and
liabilities or when the Bank has the right to offset the assets and liabilities simultancously.
Otherwise, there is not any offsetting transaction about financial assets and liabilities.

Explanations on Sales and Repurchase Agreements and Lending of Securities

Funds provided under repurchase agreements are accounted under “Funds Provided under
Repurchase Agreements-T1.” and “Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreements-FC” accounts.

Al of the repurchase agreements of the Bank are based on the short-term government bonds.
Marketable securities subject to repurchase agreements are classified under securities held for
trading, available for sale and held to maturity financial asset. The income and expenses from
these transactions are reflected to the interest income and interest expense accounts in the income
statement. Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements are recorded in “Receivables from
Reverse Repurchase Agreements” account in the balance sheet.
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XL

Explanations on Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the assers” carrying amount and fair vatue less
costs to sell, Held for sale assets are not amortized and presented separately in the financial
statements. In order to classify an asset as held for sale, only when the sale is highly probable,
experienced quite often and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale under
normal conditions. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale. Highly saleable condition requires a plan by the
management regarding the sale of the asset to be disposed of (or else the group of assets), together
with an active program for determination of buyers as welf as for the completion of the plan. Also
the asset (or else the group of assets) shall be actively marketed in conformity with its fair value.
On the other hand, the sale is expected to be journalized as a completed sale within one year after
the classification date; and the necessary transactions and procedures to complete the plan should
demonstrate the fact that the possibitity of making significant changes or canceling the plan is low,
Various circumstances and conditions could extend the completion period of the sale more than
one year, If such delay arises from any events and conditions beyond the control of the entity and
if there is sufficient evidence that the entity has an ongoing disposal plan for these assets, such
assets (or else group of assets) are continued to be classified as assets held for sale (or else group
of assets).

A discontinued operation is a division that is cither disposed or held for sale. Results of
discontinued operations are included separately in the income statement.

Explanations on Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Bank’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity recognized
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment festing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Bank’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been ailocated are
tested for impairment anaually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first {o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on ihe basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The stand alone financial statements of the Bank do not include goodwill as of the balance sheet
date.

Intangible assets that are acquired prior to 1 January 2005 are carried at restated historical cost as
of 31 December 2004; and intangible assets that are acquired subsequently are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization, and any impairment. Intangible assets are depreciated over their
expected useful lives using straight-line method. Depreciation method and period are reviewed
periodically at the end of each year. [ntangible assets are mainly composed of rights and they are
depreciated principally on a straight-line basis between 3-15 years,
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X

XHIL

Explanations on Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets, purchased before | January 2005, are accounted for at their restated costs as
of 31 December 2004 and the assets purchased in the following periods are accounted for at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and reserve for impairment,

Gain or doss resulting from disposals of the tangible fixed assets is reflecied to the income
statement as the difference between the net proceeds and net book value.

Regular maintenance and repair expenditures are expensed.
There is no pledge, mortgage or any other lien on tangible fixed assets.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated with straight-line method and their usefu} lives are
determined in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards.

Depreciation rates and estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as foliows:

Tangible Fixed Assets © Expected Useful Lives (Years) Depreciation Rate
Vehicles o e B e RO
Other Tangible Fixed Assets 2-25 : 4-50

Explanations on Leasing Transactions
The Bank as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Bank’s net investment in the Jeases. The lease payments are allocated as principle and interest.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Bank as Lessee

Asscts held under finance leases are recognized as assels of the Bank at their fair value at the
mception of the fease or, if fower, at the present value of the minimum feasc payments. The
corresponding hability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as o achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are included income statement in accordance with the Bank’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Tangible fixed assets acquired by financial leases are amortized based on the useful lives of the
assets.
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Explanations on Provisions and Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation due to a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by
using the Bank’s best expectation of expenses in fulfilling the obligation, and discounted to present
value if material.

Contingent assets consist of unplanned or other unexpected events that usually cause a possible
inflow of cconomic benefits to the Bank. Since showing the contingent assets in the financial
statements may result in the accounting of an income, which will never be generated, the related
assets are not included in the financial statements, but on the other hand, if the inflow of the
economic benefits of these assets in the Bank is probable, an explanation is made thereon in the
footnotes of the financial statements. Nevertheless, the developments velated to the contingent
assets are constantly evaluated and in case the inflow of the economic benefit to the Bank is
almost certain, the related asset and the respective income are shown in the financial statements
of the period in which the change occurred.

Explanations on Liabilitics Regarding Employee Benefits

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Bank. In retirement and involuntarily leaving, the Bank records the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

There is no indemnity obligations related to the employees who are employed with contract of
Jimited duration exceeding 12 month period.

Employees of the Bank are members of “Tirkiye Smai Kallkinma Bankasi Anonim Sirketi
Memur ve Miistahdemleri Yardim ve Emekli Vakfi” and “Tirkiye Siai Kalkinma Bankasi AS.
Mensuplart Munzam Sosyal Givenlik ve Yardimiagma Vakfi” (“the Pension Fund™). Technical
financial statements of those funds are subject to audit in accordance with the Insurance Law and
provisions of “Regulations on Actuaries” issued based on the related Jaw by an acluary registered
i the Actuarial Registry.

Paragraph | of the provisional Article 23 of the Banking Act (“Banking Act”) No: 5411
published in the Official Gazetle No: 25983 on 1 November 2005 requires the transfer of banking
funds to the Social Security Institution within 3 years as of the enactment date of the Banking
Act. Under the Banking Act, in order to account for obligations, actuarial caiculations will be
made considering the income and expenses of those funds by a commission consisting of
representatives from various institutions. Such caleulated obligation shall be settled in equal
instailments in maximum 15 years. Nonetheless, the related Article of the Banking Law was
annulled by the Constitutional Court’s decision No: E. 2005/39 and K. 2007/33 dated 22 March
2007 that were published in the Official Gazette No: 26479 on 31 March 2007 as of the release of
the related decision, the execution of this article was cancelled as of the publication of the
decision and the underlying reasoning for the cancellation of the related article was published in
the Official Gazette No: 26731 on 15 December 2607.
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Iixplanations on Liabilitiecs Regarding Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

After the publication of the reasoning of the cancellation decision of the Constitutional Court,
articles related with the transfer of banks pension fund participants to Social Security Institution
based on Social Security Law numbered 5754 were accepted by the Grand National Assembiy of
Furkey on 17 April 2008 and published in the Official Gazetie No: 26870 on 8 May 2008

Present value for the liabilities of the transferees as of the transfer date would be caleulated by a
commission that involves representatives of Social Security Institution, Ministry of Finance,
Turkish Treasury, State Planning Organization, BRSA, SDIF, banks and banks’ pension fund
institutions and technical interest rate, used in actuarial account, would be 9,80 %. If salaries and
benefits paid by the pension fund of banks and income and expenses of the pension funds in
respect of the insurance branches, stated in the Law, exceeds the salaries and benefits paid under
the regulations of Social Security Institution, such differences would be considered while
caleulating the present value for the liabilities of the transferces and the transfers are completed
within 3 years beginning from 1 January 2008.

The Main Opposition Party has appealed to the Higher Court on 19 June 2008 for cancellation of
some articles, including the first paragraph of 20. Temporary article of the Law, and requested
them to be ineffective until the case of revocatory action is finalized. As of the date of the
publication of these financial statements, there is no decision announced by the Constitutional
Court regarding the revocatory action.

Unmet social benefits and payments of the pension fund participants and other employees that
receive monthly income although they are within the scope of the related settlement deeds would
be met by pension funds and the institutions employ these participants after the transfer of pension
funds to the Social Security Institution.

The present value of the Habilities, subject to the transfer to the Social Security Institution, of the
Pension Fund as of 31 December 2009 has been caleulated by an independent actuary
accordance with the actuarial assumptions in the Law and as per 4 February 2010 dated actuariai
report, the liabilities, subject to the transfer to the Social Security Institution, are financed by the
assets of the Pension Fund.

In addition, the Bank’s management anticipates that any liability that may come out during the
transfer period and after in the context expressed above, would be financed by the assets of the
Pension Fund and would not cause any extra burden on the Bank.
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Explanations on Taxation

‘The income tax charge is composed of the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

The current tax liability is calculated over taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax labilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assels are recognized for alf deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each balance sheet date. Deferred tax is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wil} be available to
atlow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized and reflected in the statement of income
as expense or income, Moreover, if the deferred tax is related with items directly recorded under
the equity in the same or different period, deferred tax is also associated directly with equity.
Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset.

The Bank has adjusted its statutory financial statements as per the inflation accounting as of |
Japuvary 2004 in accordance with the repeated article numbered 298 in Tax Procedural Law
numbered 213 which was changed by the Law No: 5024.

According 1o ihe second paragraph of the Article 53 of the Banking Act No 5411 dated 19 October
2005, all specific reserves for loans and other receivables are considered as deductible expense for
delermining corporate tax base,

Banks in Bahrain are not subject to tax according to the regulations of the country,

Transfer Pricing:

Fransfer pricing is regulated through article 13 of Corporate Tax Law titled “Transfer Pricing
through camouflage of earnings™. Detailed information for the practice regarding the subject is
found in the “General Communiqué Regarding Camouflage of Earnings Through Transfer
Pricing”. According to the aforementioned regulations, in the case of making purchase or sales of
goods or services with relevant persons/corporations at a price that is determined against “arm’s
length principle”, the gain is considered to be distributed implicitly through transfer pricing and
such distribution of gains is not subject to deductions in means of corporate tax.
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XIX.

XX

XX

Additional Explanations on Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized at initial cost on transaction date and carried at amortized cost using
effective interest method. In the accompanying financial statements, foreign currency debt
instruments are valued using foreign exchange rates of the Bank as of the period end and interest
expense amounis of related period arising from borrowings are reflected in the financial
statements.

All other borrowing costs are recorded to the Income statement at the period they are incurred.
Explanations on Share Certificates

In the current period, the Banl’s share capital has increased by T1. 100.000. In the meeting of the
General Assembly held on 25 March 2010; it has been resolved that, paid-in capitai of the Bank
will be increased from TL 600.000 to TL 700.000 by TL. 100.000. In respect of the resolution of
the General Assembly, TL 85.000 of this increase will be incorporated from the profit of the year
2009 and T 15.000 from extraordinary reserves. The increase in paid-in capital was approved by
the BRSA on 27 April 2010 and has been published in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette No:
7576 on 2 June 2010.

In the prior period, the Bank’s share capital has increased by T 100.000. In the meeting of the
General Assembly held on 25 March 2010, it has been resolved that, paid-in capital of the Bank
will be inereased from TL 500.000 to T1. 600.000 by T1. 100.000. In respect of the resolution of
the General Assembly, TL 96.000 of this increase will be incorporated from the profit of the year
2008 and TL 4.000 from extracrdinary reserves. The increase in paid-in capital was approved by
the BRSA on 29 April 2009 and has been published in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette No:
7335 on 18 June 2009,

Explanations on Acceptances

Acceptances are realized simuliancousiy with the payment dates of the customers and they are
presented as commitments in the of~batance sheet accounts,

Explanations on Government Incentives

The Bank does not use government incentives.

Explanations on Segment Reporting

ln accordance with its mission, the Bank mainly operates in fnvestment and corporate banking
segments.

Corporate Marketing Management operations are included in the corporate banking. The
corporate banking is serving financial solutions and banking services for its large-scale corporate
customers. Among the services given to corporate customers are; Tl and foreign exchange
warking capital loans, investment loans, project financing, letters of credit and letters of
guarantees,

The activities of investment banking are; the operations of Treasury, Corporate Finance,
Research, Iinancial Institutions and Marketable Securities and  Portfolio  Management
departments. Under the investment banking activities, portfolio management for corporate and
individual customers, marketable securities imtermediary activities, cash management and all
types of corporate finance services is provided.
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XXI.  Explanations on Segment Reporting (Cont’d)

The segmenial aliocation of the Bank’s net profit, fotal assets and total Habitities are showsn below:

Current Period
Net Interest Income

Other Expense

Net Commission and Fees Income

Corporate

. Banking
lirmoz o
3422

14,997

(26871)

Profit Before Tax
Tax Provision

10333

Invesiment
JBankdng

L 113449

33

170
e AEATON)

96146

Other 3 Total
L 227241
AL o
L A3 888
o K63.6TT)
13898 213.378
- (44.707)

Net Profit

- 168,671

_Current Period
_Segmenl Assels

Investiment in Associates and Subsidiaries

Corporate

... Banking = :

investment

Banking .
26892631

Other Total
| 6.739.427
261.400

2037
261.400

Total Assets

3,998,127 ;

2.689.263 :

313.437 7.000.827

_Segment Liabitities
Sharehoider’s Equity

LA101778 0

LA22TITS

7z

] 5.800.963
1.199.864

1.199.8064

Total Liabilities

4,101,778 :

1.527.975:

1.371.074 7.000.827

come,

OtherIncome

Tax Provision

Net Commission and Fees Income

ProfitBefore Tax

Corporate

Banking |
72384
2754
20.009

{42,

2915

Investment
Banking

21.366)
100472 -

Other Total
e 189.765
3L 4597
203006 43.530
L 413.509) - (77.137)
S 2338 160755
- (27.878)

Net Profit

- 132.877

_Prior Period (*%)
Segment Assets

Corporate

L Banking
3.954.710

Investment in Associates and Subsidiaries

Invesiment

. Banking
_2.628.662

Ofther Total
6.660.404
244,225

7032
244225

Total Assets

3,954,710

2.628.662 -

321,257 6.904.629

“Scgment Liabilities
Shareholder™s Iiquity

4122038

].578.191

163605
1.040.795

5.803.834
1,040,795 |

Total Liabilities

4.122.038

1.578.191

1,204,400 6.964.629

(%) The information is velated 1o 30 Seprember 2009,
EEiThe information is related 1o 31 December 2009,
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SECTION THREE (Cont’d)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coni’d)

XXII. Explanations on Other Matters
None,

XXI11. Classifications

in the current period, foreign currency reserve deposits amounting to Tl 17.966 as ol 3]
December 2009 has been classified to “Cash and Balances with Central Bank” from “Other
Assets”.

The Bank makes classifications in financial statements of prior years, for comparability.
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(Amounts expressed in thonsands of Turkish Lira (1) unless otherwise stated,)

SECTION FOUR
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE
L Fxplanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio

The capital adequacy ratio is 25,56 % as at 3¢ September 2010 (31 December 2009: 24.919%).
Related to the calculation of the capita} adequacy ratio, the risk weighted assets, the commitments
and non-cash loans are classified according to the collateral groups and evaluated within the
particular risk group.

Information related to the capital adequacy ratio:

Rnsi( Wclg,ln
Bank .

0% 10% 0% S0% . 100%

Amuunts gubject io ( lc{hi Ri‘-k 7 '_‘

“ﬂ""'“‘"’m *“'m(Ne‘) L 368700 - 653697 1008876 2778387 -
(d.sl‘z 2140 - - .

i)uui ‘Tom Domestic Banks, IForeign B.mks : :
Branches and Head Qffice Abroac ‘ : C 149068

Inlubank M(mcy Mmku Pldcumnls . s . o - . -
Receivables FFrom Rwusa cho

‘Transactions . . . o . .
R(,suw, ])mem 30]6, o _ _ "
owns s e, 9wz amsan - :

BB

/\\’dlldbib ] or- Sdlbl mdnual Assus N

Held (o Mammy Investments ©271.580

Rmuvablusllomlnsmlhnwt Salesof : :

Sundly l)u )im\

§nlubsl dnd lmomo Acu lm]s( ) 21.403 . 433() 33336 52‘495 ' _ .~

Egubs]dmnu Associates and i,mmu, Undu
(‘()mmon onlmi (lmm Vent, }(I\Ll)

Other Assers e LE388 4208

T angﬁzb ¢ Assus

Off-Ba],mce Sheet itcms - 74.128 : . 67.385 ¢ - “;_201 510.517 : -
(nmmnlcus and (‘onnmlmuns 74.128 - 39184 9201 : 505.837 -
Duwalwc I nmnual inslwmcnls . - £00] . 4.680 | -

Non mk We:ghtc(! Acco
Iot‘lt Rlsk chg,hie(i Ass [

439.828 S 721082 0 1018077 3.285.874 - :

Summary information related to the capital adequacy ratio:

C urr Ll]l Pu |0d Pl ior l’u ;od
Total Risk Wuahlu Assets {] RWA) ' 939 HO ‘

Amount th]cg{ 10 Market Risk (A%MR)
Amount Sub)u,l 0 ()]}c;fmmml I{nl\ ASOR}

3619510
STM0I3 . sjoog
1238835 1013335
25,56 24,91 |

Shareholders’ I3 (]mty'

Sharcholders” Equity / (TRWA + ASMR + ASOR) *100

L}!
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

I.

30 SEPTEMBER 2010

Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio (Cont’d)

Information related to the components of sharcholders' equity:

( ()Rl‘ AP] IAL

Pd}d -in (,dpna!

Nemmdl Ldplml

e dplldi u)mmllmwls ( )
Inﬂalmn dd]ll\lmuil fo sh:m Ld])lhl]
Sh

i canulldlmn |)10h!s

' )l umum

e g“dl reserves

Lirst Icua] reserve ( [ mkzsh Lommuuai ( o(lc 4()()/1)

Oihu iugal reserve per spu,mi lcg]slauon

Sldmlmy reserves

S(,umci lc,g:dl eserve (luzklsh ( ommugml (,()d{, 466/2)7‘ - -

Exlram

Ruu ves a]l()calud l)y llm Gener nl

Rumnul ear mnp

/\ccumulalul }ossc,s

J mu;_n currency sh.m, Ldplldi L\L,hdl'l{,b diﬂucnu,s

lﬂﬂdll()i] ad;uslmcm on iu,al reserves, statutory reserves dl]d
c\u(u)ldnmy FOServes

i’l ofil

( unun pu wd ])10

?i ior years® pr

Provisions for possilic J

ses up 1o 25 % of core capital

Lo capital

Pl ior years” Eo‘,sm

Leaschold |mpm\funu1ls( }

Prepaid expenses (-)

lmangiblg assels ( )

Total Core Capital

Gains on sale of associates and subsidiaries and properties 1o bc, ad{lcd :

upm;{) R '

§5NCC$§ﬂ'.’]?..l_.‘!‘.l_. as per the Article 563‘ Q_I.al__t_!s_c. 3ofthe Banking Law {-) |

¢ Current Period

Prior Period

00000
700,000

e d0I29

108328 ¢ ...

e

{46d)

600,000
. 600.000
374
L.33:900
28184
27716,
28,184
99.712.
26,792,
2,920

ieBO7Y

..174.888
171,888

28378

)
24
618

981.682
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)
L. Explanations Related to the Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio (Cont’d)

Information related fo the components of sharcholders’ equity (Cont’d):

SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL

(Current Period: Prior Period

enlary Capital

s

General Loan Loss Provisions e 33813 33463
45 % of the revaluation reserve for movable fixed assets U S B T
15 % of e of revaluation reserve for properties : -
l3onus sharcs obtained from associates, subsidiarics and entities under common control Goint
ventures). e U SR S S
Primary subordinated toans excluded in the ealeulation of the Core Capital = -0 -
secondary subordinated leans e 12,625 L4850
Marketable securitic UG e 35039 24012
. Associates and su Lo TAT0 53
. Available for sale sceurities o BT38D 22,159
[ndexation differences for capital reserves, profit reserves and retained earnings (F
indexation differences for legal reserves, statutory reserves and extraordinary reserves)

132325

APITAL e 1289355 L114.007
DEDUCTIONS FROM THE CAPITAL e RO (672)
Sharcholdings of banks and financial institutions (Domestic, Foreign) from which the
. Bank keeps ten pereent or more of capitais O USRI S-S B -
Sharcholdings of unconsolidated banks and financial institations (Domestic, Foreign) :
from which the Bank keeps less than Ten percent of capifals which excecd the ten;
Percentof Bank’s Core and Supplementary Capital - -
Sccondary subordinated loans granted o Banks and Financial Institutions (Domestic,
Foreign)y or Qualified Sharchokiers and placements in scourities of these entities that
possess the nature of their Primary or Sccondary Subordinated Delt :
Loans granted being non-compliant with the Articles 30 and 51 of the Banking Law L .
The net book value of properties exeecding {ilty percent of equity and propertics held for!
sale and propertics and commadity 1o be disposed. acquired in exchange of loans and
recetvables according 1o the Article 537 of the Banking Law and have not been disposed :
Lyetafter S yewsafter foreeloswre S0 (67
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY _ 1.258.835 1.113.335
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

11.

Explanations Related fo Market Risk

In order to avoid the market risk and restrict the risks carried, the Board of Directors determines
the limits on market risk. Risk, nominal and proportional lnmtd%mn systems are used and the
related reports are presented to Board of Directors, relevant committees and top management.

The guidelines prepased by Risk Management Group that is composed of Risk Management
Directorate and Risk Management Committee regarding organization, responsibility and
operations are approved by the Board of Directors. Risk management policies are determined and
announced throughout the Bank.

The standard method is used to calculate the consotidated and unconsolidated market risk. In
addition to the standard method, the Bank applies parametric and historical simulation models to
seeurities portfolio, foreign currency position on a daily or monthly basis to detect the market
risks. The success of these models is tested retrospectively, The Bank also makes VaR
calculations, scenario analysis and stress tests (o detect the risks not caught by using internal
models. Market risk is measured on a daily basis and reported to top management, Audit
Committee and Board of Directors weekly and monthly.

The market risk table is as follows:

Amouni

(l) Lap]ldl Ru unumm 10 b(, ]d nployui [m (unudi Mazhcl Rlsk Slmulmd I\f uhod 7

33. 620

Rcsullmg ;()m I manudi Instuumnls u,h&,d lo lmucsl lnu)mu 28.086

. Ru,u]lmg: mm Pmmons in S]mu (uh!u_alu; ]nvcslmuu I un(l An(l Pamu; dll()l] ( uiimalu 5.534
(ll) (Japlml R(,qunun(,nl 10 iu, -mp]ayud for | peeitic Risk - Shmddui Vluhod B 8]4}
Resulting from I |n.m<,m§ Insln umenis m];;t(,d to inter L‘ﬂ lmmm 2]81
Rusu ting hOm Posxlmns in Slmu, Cer lthlus lmmslmuil l und rlmd I’mtlcmdlmn Cert malcs . S 59(,0
4060,

4117

(d]‘)lldl hquncmuai ( almlaiui for ()plxons Suh ect 10 I muw ( wreney Rlsk

(IV) C dplld} RL(]li]K,iTluli to hL l m 1I0yul m ( ommmlztv Rlxk - Sldndald Muhod

(V) (,anldi Rt,qumm(,n{ to hc, melo)&d Im Sbliiuﬂuzt Rl_ k - Shmdmd Muhod B .

(V1) Iom! Capital Ru}unumn{ tbel: mpio) cd for ’\fhuku R]SR Rusullmw From ()pmmx - Slandard

45,921

574.013
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont*d)

111,

Explanations Related to Currency Risk

No long or short position is taken due to the uncertainties and changes in the markets therefore; no
exposure to foreign currency risk is expected. However, possible foreign currency risks are
calculated on a weekly and monthly basis under the standard method in the foreign currency risk
table and their results are reported to the official authorities and the Bank’s top management. Thus,
foreign currency risk is closely monitored. Foreign currency risk, as a part of general market risk,
is also taken into consideration in the calculation of Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio.

No short position is taken regarding foreign currency risk, whereas, counter position is taken for
any foreign currency risks arising from customer transactions as to avoid foreign currency risk.
The Bank has no hedging transactions through derivative instruments for its foreign currency
borrowings and net foreign currency investments.

Announced current foreign exchange buying rates of the Bank as at the balance sheet date and the
previous five working days in USD, EURO and YEN are as follows:

A. Bank “Forcign Exchange Valuation Rate”
30 September 2010 1435 19724 00174
Priox Five Workdays: S B R
295 FF?F‘_“?_‘”_‘_'?O.I.QH 14600 19837 L0817
2 _ 4725 ¢ 1,9813 00175
27 September200 e T 0.0175
24 September 2010 T - em 00174
23 September 2010 4850 1o 0o

Simple arithmetic thirty-day averages of the USD, EURO and YEN buying rates of the Bank
before the balance sheet date are TL. 1,4930, TL 1,9462 and TL 0,0177; respectively.
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{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (11 unless otherwise stated )

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

EES. Explanations Related to Currency Risk (Cont’d)
Information on the Bank’s forcign currency risk: foreign currencies:
CLEURQ L USD o Yen L Other FCUT Totat

Period
Assels

Cash {Cash in Vault, Foreign Curency
Cash, Money in Transii,

ks Purchased) and Balances with
nirai Bank ol Turkey,

““““ S 2 32348
684 1.049 86.695

 Tinancial Assets at Fair Yalue ]hxouf’h‘ : : :
Lo Pofitandbess () Ane 8039 -

Money Market Plzlcunbl]l“ - -

10,800,
| o - 466958
1905861 1884018 3429 - 3793308

. /\\‘d}}dbllﬁl ()l S:liL } Ilth!dI A\SL[S | . ()23(}] ) 4 04()57 ‘ - - ..

's Associates and Entitics

__Undcx(ommon{omm (oist Venty — h - -
Held-To-Maturity Invesiments : i - - -

Derivative Financial Assels for Iluinn
_Purposes

Tangit

Other Assets (++) L 62.033 24.942 ¢ 494 ; §7.473
2.372.847 | 4.607 1.072 4497581

Total Assets 2.119.055 .
! |.tb11|t|es : ‘

Bank Dap(m[s -

_ imu“n(w'uwlkpmn% ST AU S S I T N
foney Market Borrowings 48015 320060 - 932 77053
Funds Provided From Otker Financial : ‘ : :
Dmstitions 0 2047983 0 23434050 . 00491188
JMarketable Seawities Issued 2 -1 L o R S
Sundry Creditors, 549216987 .20 22481
Derivative Financial Liabilities for : : : :
Hedging Parpos

Other Liabilities (%%

3.740 6.330 . - 19.070
Total Liabilities 2202030 2.398.728 . 234 4.600,992
Net Balanee Sheet Position (82.975) {25.881) ¢ 4.607 : 838 (103.411)
Net Off- Bafance Sheet Position - 68046 50212 (4354) ] 1842 115746

Finanoial Derivative Assels - 242034 4183550 29.624 | 1.842 691855
i (173.988)  (368.143).  (33.978) s (376.109)
41722 591,635 Lo 733357

_ Financial Derivative Li

Non-Cash Loans (
Prior P“'Od U SR RUS S S d . . S
Total Assets 2215517 2,205,905 24,992 1311 4447725

Total L mbaizuu 2.246.247 2.159.066 | 39.000 500 4444813
Net Balance Sheet Position (30.730) 46.839 {14.008) 811 2.912
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position 35650 (3858%) . 13501 10566
136332 94404 24.487 . 233223
velisbilities 0.682) :  (132.989)  (10.986) L (R44.05T)
*) : 118.3533 ¢ 2‘)3 067 | - 371.420
(%) Exchange rate differences arising from derivative bransactions amaouiting to TL 135 s deducted from “Financial Assels ar Fair
Vealue Through Profit and Loss .
(**} Loans extended, include T1. 1.375.674 foreign currency indexed loans.
(*#%) Prepaid expenses cmounting 10 T4 4.628 have not been included in other assets.
(*FF5) Marketable securities valnation increase fund amounting (o TL 37.304 and exchange rate differences arising from derivative
fransactions amownting o TL 545 has not been included in "Other Liabilitics.
{¥¥58) Has no effect on nier off-balance sheet position,

. Financial Derivative Axsus o

_ Financial Deri

MNon-Cash Loans (*
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

1v.

Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate sensitivity of the assets, Habitities and off-balance sheet items are measured by the
Bank. General and specific interest rate risk tables in the standard method, by including assets and
liabitities, are taken into account in determination of Capital Adequacy Standard Ratio and o
calcuiate the overall interest rate risk of the Bank.

Forecast results, which have been formed using estimation-simulation reports are prepared and
then the effects of fluctuations in interest rates are evaluated with sensitivity and scenario analysis.
Cash requirement for every maturity period are determined based on maturity distribution analysis
(Gap). In addition, a positive spread between the yield on assets and the cost of liabilities is kept
while determining interest raics,

The amount of local borrowings is very low considering the total liabilities of the Bank. As the
Bank is a development and investment bank, it obtains most of the funding from abroad.

The fluctuations in interest rates are controlled with interest rate risk tables, gap analysis, scenario
analysis and stress tests, its effect in assets and liabilities and the probable changes in cash {lows
are being screened. The Bank screens many risk control ratios inciuding the markets risk ratio to
the sum of risk weighted assets and the ratio of the value at risk calculated as per the internal
model to the equity.

Under the scope of risk policies, continuous controls are made to prevent assets or sharcholders®
equity from adverse effects because of fluctuations in interest rates or liquidity difficulties and
upper management, Board of Directors and Audit Committee are informed of these risks.
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

[ AR Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet

items (based on repricing dates):

i-3 3-12
Maonths | Months

Upio 1

Current Period
Month

i-5
Years

5 Year
and
Over

Non-
inferest
bearing(*):

Total

cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency
Cash, Money in Transit, Checks
Purchased) and Balances witl the

Central Bank of Turkey S S

PBanks 13677401
Financial Assels at Fair Value Through
Profitand Loss Tt .

. T30017. 210.807
. - 647.576: 1.391,899 1.694.890
. Held-to-Matuwrity Investments = o0 20408
' 150930 342200 24606

_Money Market Placements

S

ale Financial Asset

L Loans

Other Assets

386,868

247020
153.637

4.458

12747

6000 28275

fon

3.213
149.487

105.668

263343

S 313437

2084912

294983
391,914

Total Assets

7.000.827

Liabilities

Other Deposits S

_ Money Market Borrowings 0 897.889 4.

. Sundry Creditors.

Marketable Seeurities lssued
IFunds Provided from Other Financial
Institutions 3574301674785

2.802

2.847.

Other Liabilities

1.535.1 07; 1.639.340. 2.607.381

2664

- 19198s.

2.170626.
6.226

462,389

28559
4.662

307281 449.329

61388

S 1300299

T 929003
b JOTTS

70.775

191,985

4.492.188
1.316.836

Total Liabilitics 1.458.121

7,000,827

Balance Sheet Long Position 76986

Balance Sheet Shorl Position -0

Ofl-Balance Sheet Long Position

Off-Balance Sheet Shorl Position (¥*) 3 (l.433.289)§ -

1.682.145! 2,394,878

212503
(2805 - -
(87.414)

33221

429,168

(646‘}: "

61.388 1.371.074

5 (921.745)

LA5A82 g

245,893 e T

_(1.521.349)

964,550
(964.550)

56268

Total Position A‘ (I.356.303)§ (32.019)

125,089

428.522

291,375 (921.745)

(1.465.081)

(%) Amounts in invesiments in associates and subsidiaries, deferred fax asset, angible and infangible fived assets, other assets and shareholders’
equity, provisions and fax fiability are presented in non-interest bearing column, in order to reconcile the tofal assels and liabilities on the

balance sheet,

(%% TL L.500.958 of this amount is interest rate futures - buy with maturities benween 1-3 years and showed ai nominal vahie, This balance is
shored under “Up to I month ™ column since these transactions are inder daily iterest exposure.
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{(Amounts expressed in theusands of Turkish Lira (T1.) unless olherwise stated.)

SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)
Iv. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Average interest rates applied to monetary financial instruments: %

BURO. . USD . Yew ML

LooAssets
Cash {Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, ‘
Money in Transit, Checks Purchased) and Balances

. with the Cenural Bank of Turkey ;
Banks
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and : : :
FIVE : - - :

. Money Market Placements - 0L

. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets & 540

Loans

oHeld-to-Matarity Investments

Liabilities

. Money Market Baowings g0 097

W

Marketable Sccurities fssued

Funds Provided from Other Financial insl'irnrlli(ms . ]'_3() 7 ;,(}3. . -
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)
iv, Expianations Related 1o Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Information related to the interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items of prior period (based on repricing dates):

SYear o Nop-
and . interest
Over bearing(*®)

Uptet 13 312 i-5

Yriar Pl
Prior Period Month  ° Months ~ Maonths | Years

Total

Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Forcign
Currency Cash, Money in Transit,
Cheeks Purchased) and Balances

_ with the Central Bank of Turkey - S - 21070, 21070

Banks LSBT 50.09) o Tt JLTOAL 155008

Financial Assets at Fair Value :
L Ahrough Proficand Loss

1665594 29224 10736 "

~ Money Market Placements o . - -

L Available-for-Safe Pinancial Assets | 414499 634,691 391.892 428336 253001 24.737

Loans 1393825 1493674 749822 138068 42245

2147249

Held-lo-Maturity Investments " 982200 - 182309 -

Other Assels f 7.651 64,1227 471530 16150 - 3032910 438.367
Total Assets L 1.912.753 2,341.4920 £.218.090 0 775619 295339 361.335  6.904.629

Liabilities

BankDeposits .o

_..Money Market Borrowings 1223763 2590 s83do: . - 1284693
SSendsy Creditors b 52088 52.088
_ Markelable Scewitics Issued - I S R S SRS S
Funds Provided from Other : ﬁ :
Financial Institations 0 1616559 1934453 750.797 . 47.048 54700 - 4403558
Other Linbilitics 2.444 586 23470 6601 - 152312 1.164.290

Total Liabilities 2.842.766 1.937.629 811484 53.649° 54701 1.204.400  6.904.629

Bajance Sheet Long |

ton - 403863 406607 721970 240.638 - LTT3078
BT S S S (1.773,078)
OfT-Balance Sheet Shorl Position (3%) 7?{|.()44.437) (1 1)5 - - - - (1.644.448)
Total Position (2.574.450)  403.852  406.771 72712 240.638  (843.065) (1.639.142)

(%) Amownts in invesiments in associates and subsidiories, deferred tax asset, tangible and intangible fixed assets, other assets and
shareholders” equity, provisons and tax liability are presented in non-interest bearing column, in order 1o reconcile the total assets and
Habilities on the balance sheer.

Balance Sheel Short Position

Off-Balance Sheet Long Position : s e s L

(%)L 1.643.661 of this amount is interest rate futures - buy with maiurities betveen 1-5 years and showed af nomingl value. This
balance is showed wnder *Up to 1 month ™ cofiwnn since these transuctions are under daily Diterest exposure.
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)
INFORMATION ON FINANCYAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

EV. Explanations Related to Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Average inferest rates applied to monetary financial instruments in prior period: %

R L BURO. o USD . Yen  © 1L
Prior Period ; : '

L Assets R B

Cash (Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash,

Money in Transit, Checks Purchased) and : { : :

.. Balanees with the Central Bank of Tugkey = - B -
Banks 5 022 - i .36
Financial Assels at Fair Value through Profit ‘ : :

_and Loss

Loans
igld-1o-M
2 Ldab
Bank Deposils
er De
_.Money M
. Sundry .
Marketable Securities Issued 7
Tunds Provided from Other Financial ; i
Insiitutions 1,41 1,16 1,96 ¢ -

aturily Investments

arket Borrowings

Explanations Related to Liguidity Risk

The Bank’s future cash flows and current positions are taken into consideration for managing the
market and liquidity risks. The Bank does not invest into illiquid markets and instruments, The
liquidity ratios are followed up and the maturity match and the coverage of liquidity need are
targeted in the context of asset- Hability management.

Although the Bank started to perform tests to caleulate liquidity risk with internal models, the risk
is still followed up basically by adapting the risks to “holding period” data.

For the purpose of meeting the liquidity requirement, the Bank chooses one of the three or more of
the following; disposing Hquid assets, increasing short-term borrowing, decreasing illiquid assets
or increasing capital. The Bank’s liquidity management is implemented by meeting all the
obligations on time considering the Bank’s reputation. The cash flow projections and the fund
requirement predictions are made by using adverse scenarios to determine liquidity risk under
urgent and unexpected circumstances,

As seen on interest rate risk tables, the difference in interest rates of assets and liabilities is in
favor of the assets, Such mismatch positively affects the profitability and is checked by the Bank
Management with regular reports.

The Bank meets its short-term liquidity requirements primarily with repurchase agreements and
mter-bank money market operations, The Bank may also use its available for sale portfolio for
urgent Hiquidity requirement. The Bank meets its long-term liquidity needs from the international
institutions through borrowings.
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SECTION FOUR (Cont’d)

INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE (Cont’d)

V.

Presentation of assets and liabilities according to their remaining maturities:

Explanations Related to Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

Uptod

Demand ¢
. ) Month

1-3

: Months

3-12
Months

1-5

Yoears Over

5 Year and Undistributed |

Total
(")

Current Period
Assets : ;
Cagh (Cash in Vaulg, Farcign
Currency Cash, Money in
Transit, Checks Puschased)
and Balances with the Ceniral
CBank of Turkey 052

2

20161

 Banks

Financial Assets at Fair Value |
- Through Profit and 1,085

2894

Money Market Placements - o

Financial Assels Available-

-Maturity lovestments .0

4.692:

Orther Assels “

136,740,

2414,

43,648
77042

6,983

321955,

39961

- 34213

149487

103,668

6034 6.090

11424

337.163;

36843 2.084.912

2.309.536!

767.045, 675.939

-13.919.650

190.799
30,325

36.477, .

- 3
313.437. 391914

‘Fotal Assels

130,187

1.316.158

314,540,

Liabilities

Bank Deposits

OtherDeposits 1
Funds Provided from Other

Tnancial Iastiutions o 78395,

Money Market Borrowings © - 897.889
_ Marketable Securities Jssed = - o
Sundry Crediors 0 -

Other Liabilities - 2.571

19584,

4513

1410

3,621,582 1.219.192

198.971

5070 6.070 1414

LML

1.300.299: 1.316.836

350,2801 7.000.827

-

929043

o 191985
0775, 70.775

‘Fotal Liabititics . - 978855

25.507

722669 1.642.703  2.260.019

Liguidity Gap . 99049 (T14.476)
Prior Peviod o

- 349.348.
.. Fotal Liabilities o _ 1425991
18703 (1.076.643

C TowlAssets 018793

Liguidity Gap

. A77.626
174.000

104.080.

303.626

992700 3.953.331
27957

593.489.

713.543

1978873 (1.040.827)

1.371.07417.000.827
(1.0 :

788255 324576 690462
.J.005.581 . 2.215.500
2.347.750  (1.427.245)

1.204,40p  6:904.62

(879.824) -

(%) Other asset and shaveholders ' equity, provisons and tax liability, which are necessary and cannol be converfed into cash i ihe near future for
the Bank's ongoing activities, such as langible and intamgible assets, ivestments in subsidiaries and associates, office supply bventory, prepaid

expenses and non-performing loans are classified wnder wndistributed.
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SECTION FIVE
EXPLANATIONS AND BISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ Explanations Related to the Assefs
I.a information on cash and balances with the Centrai Banl of Turkey:
Current Period Prior Period
LLashom L Foreign Cureency 14 B L I L T 4
. Balanees wilh the Central Bapk of Turkey . N BYRL L2249 as2 20.387
Other - . - -
Total ﬁ 1.868 52,345 566 20.504
1.b Enformation related to the account of the Central Bank of Turkey:
Current Period : Prior Period
 Unrestricted demand deposits 1754 2088 452 ..2421

Ly lime deposits - . " .
Restricted time deposits, 0 Ls L e T -
Other (%) i 50.16] . 17.966
Total : 1.754 52.249 452 - 20,387

%) Deposits ar Central Bank of Turkey held as reserve reguirement.

2.a Information on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
2.a.1  Trading securities

2.a.l.a Trading securifies given as collateral or blocked

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no (rading securities given as collateral or
blocked (31 December 2009: None).

Za.Lb Trading securities subject to repurchase agreements

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no trading sceuritics subject fo repurchase
agreements (31 December 2009: T1. 4.493),

2.2 Information on financial assets designated at {air value through profit and foss

Z.a.2.a Information on financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss given
as collateral or blocked

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no financial assets designated at fair value
through profit and loss given as collateral or blocked (31 December 2009: None).

2.2.2.b Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss subject fo repurchase
agreements
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss subject to repurchase agreements (31 December 2009: None).



TORKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASIE AS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

{Amounts expressed in theusands of Furkish Liva (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
I Explanations Related fo the Assets (Cont’d)
I.b Positive differences table related to derivative financial assets held-for-trading:
Hekd for trading financial derivative . Current Period o brior Period
mstruments Ti. FC TL : e
LLorward Transactions - . R
_ Swap Transactions L4290 6723 2.74)
Cdutures Fransactions B S - o
Options LY 0.645 298 1.521
Other 1,007 ¢ - - -
Total 7.405 | 10.935 7,021 4.262
3. Information on Banks:
Prior Period
Domestic 68362 121623 5493
Branches and head office abroad - - - -
Total 62.792 | 86.695 121.623 33.385
4. Information on Financial Assets Available-for-Sale:
4.a.1  Financial assets available-for-sale subject to repurchase agreements
L Current Period ¢ Prior Period
e TN L S LFC o
Governnient bonds 49791 1.029.; 46421
reasury bills . . .
Other debt seeurilies 30.8 - -
Bark bonds and bank guarantced bonds - - -
Assel backed securities - . .
Other - . -
Total 575.103 86.616 1.029.375 46.421
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Cont’d)
1 Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
4, Information on Financial Assets Available-for-Sale (Cont’d)
4.a.2  Information on financial assets available-for-saie given as collateral or blocked
All financial assets available Tor sale given as collateral comprise of financial assets issued by the
Furkish Treasury, The carrying value of those assets is TL 341.913 (31 December 2009: 1L
334.701).
Current Period Prior Period
Bond, treasury bill and similar investment : :
Cseewnities Lo ..208980. 72933 158290 176,411 |
Other - . - .
[Total : 268,980 72,933 158.290 176.411
4.b Major types of available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets comprise government bonds 77,45 %, Eurobonds 14,21 % and
shares and other securities 8,34 % (31 December 2009: government bonds 78,60 %, Eurobonds
12,91 % and shares and other securities 8,49 %).
Financial and non-financial investments, to which the Bank has invested between 0,35 % to
7,00% are classified in available-for-sale financial assets.
d.¢ Information on financial assets available for sale portfolio

L Cwerent Period
.. 2.050.154 ¢

Debt securitics

 Quoted on s L6968 1693742
Co Unguoted 41586 L .A436.343
Share certificates B ANt 29232

L Quoted onastoek exchange o 087

. Unquoted R T X - & Y N7
Impairment provision(-) L saen o (15.520)
Other ) 3.814 3.452
Fotal 2.084.912 2,147,249

Net book value of unquoted available for sale stocks are T1L 13.189 (31 December 2009; TL
13.431).



FORKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amogunts expressed i thousands of Twrkish Liva (L) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
A Information on Loans:

5.a Information on all types of loans and advances given to sharcholders and employees of the
Bank

o Current Peviod
Non-Cash

oo Loans T
orate sharcholders 0 M7708 174130

.. Prior Period

Non-Cash

i Loans
d2reas o 117413

© Cash Loans Cash Loans

Rirect loans pranted to sharcholders

RLes . N

person sl

Indirect loans granted (o shareholders R

l.oans granied to employees 244 ¢ - 249 -

Total ] 117.952 117413 | 121.877 | 117.413

5.b Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including
restructured or rescheduled loans (%)

Standard Loans and ‘ Loans and Qther Receivables
Other Receivables : Under Close Monitoring

Cash l.oans

Loans and Other = Restructured or ¢ Loans and Other . Restructured or
Receivables : Rescheduled Receivables Rescheduled

Non-specialized loans 3849892 - 3638 43-4975 . 22623

Jnvestment foans 0 2088793 19840
Loans given to financial sector | AT -

CLonsumer foans

_ Credit cards

 PreciousmetalsJoans L L
Specialized foans

Other receivables - - - -

Total 3.849.892 3.638 43497 22.623

*)Close monitoring receivables fron leasing transactions amownting to T 14.474 have heen also inchded.
8 . g
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cont’d)

k. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5 Information on Loans (Cont’d):
3. Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards, personnel loans and credit eards
riven to personnel
Short Termn Mediun and Long : Total
Term

onsumu i - T
ilousmﬂ 1 mms
( al i

(:Lnual Puapoau Loans

()lhu

smsumu 1 Odlh in(luui w ¥ (
Hm:smn oans :

( an l oan-,

(m\cm} P urpo. ¢
()lhu

onsumu E Aais- I {

Adns

HOUSIH“ ]. o‘lns
C ar ],o.:ns

(Jumal Pmp(m ] oans ;
()li

T With astall

" Witheut h‘;l.d.l.l.nliuuhis
lndlvaclnal Credit ¢ auh ¥ (
Wlih insmiinnnls
\Vnhmtl Insm}imum o

Pu i;onnd 1 AHans- i I

Ilousuw i omns .
Car Loans .
General P ’mpow Io.ms
" Other 34};

iusmmd L oans imlc.\'cd to FC
Housmﬂ 1 mlns

Car Loans

Other

Car Loans

General PIII[JOSL | olns
Other

Pusonml ( m( H ( d}(|\~

With Insmllmuns
- W:ihm:l ln\miimu\ls
Personnel LlL(Ill ( ar dx I L """
Wslh Install

thuul lnsl.tllmunx

)vmdml‘l /\u_ounls THL(R icai Pusons)

dverdrali Accounts-FC (Real Persons) - - .
Total 5 173 71 244
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cont’d)

i Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5. Information on Loans (Cont’d):
S5.d Information on commercial loans with instaliments and corporate credit eards

The Bank has not granted any conunercial loans with installments and corporate credit cards as of
the balance sheet date (31 December 2009: None).

S.e Domestic and foreign loans
_‘ ( uncni l’e: md : an Pu xod
Cbamesicloms T Csomes, a0
Foreign loans : 1.012; 39.266
Total : 3.959.650 ; 3.819.634
58 Loans granted to subsidiaries and associates
. ' Cuirent Period Prior Period
l)u J ) 206, 881
In(ineu loans gr (infui w0 submd]anu aud nsxoudlus i : -
Total : 182.734 206.881
5.9 Specific provisions provided against loans
( urrent Pe: m(l ;. Prior
... Loans and receivables with limited collectibitity e %s 767 e
Lo rables with doubtli coﬂuuxbllnv o B e -
Umollu,l)blc leans and receivables 16.819 21.675
Loans and receivables with limited collectibility : 25.586 | 21675

The Bank allocates 100 % provision for all non-performing oans regardless of the collaterals.
S5.h Information on non-performing loans (Net)

S5.h.1  Information on loans and other rveccivables restructured or rescheduled from non-
performing loans

L Group - V.Growp V. Group
Loans and
- Receivables With | Uncollectible Loans
Doubtful ¢ and Receivables
Collecuibitity  :

{.oans and
Receivables With
Limited Collectibility:

Cu; rent Pcr |0(I -

(Ciross amounts 1)c,10n pzovasnms) _ ] e H bZ(}
_Restructured foans and other u,u,zmblua T S -
- [Rescheduled loans and other receivables -l 13820

Prior Period

(Gross amounts b'v[O'L PIOVNW“) S e e T i 0349

".‘R%UUP.‘!??PF?.J..‘?E‘“.-‘.‘!!?ﬁi.ﬁ“hc!f"CCF‘..i..\'?‘b'CS...‘.‘, . T

Rescheduled loans and other receivables ; - - 6.349
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Cont’d)

I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5. Information on Loans (Cont’d):
3.h Information on non-performing loans (Net) (Cont’d)

5.2 Movement of non-performing loans:

M Group L WVeGrowp 0 V. Group
Loans and R Llc,;(:]z];;kdsni.ihlll © Uncollectible
Receivables With o VRS Loans and

L N Do Doubtil S
Limited Collectibility oy o Reecivables
5 T Coilectibility

s 21675

Prior period end balance e

Transters from other categorics of non-performing ; i :

Jransfers lo other categories of non-performing loans () . - -

""""" RO SR DTS S

Wi

_ Corporate and Comme

Retail Loaos . . - - -
()_1_hc_x_' o . - -

Current period end balange 87T - . 16819

Specific provision (-) i {8.767} - (16819

Net Balances on Balance Sheet

(%) The foar amonnting to 71 1.851, which is transferred (o the second group. is shoven as collections.

3.3 Information on foreign currency non-performing loans and other reeeivables:

IV, Group : V. Group

Loans and Receivables
With Doubitful
Coliectibility

Uncollectible Foans and
Reeervables

‘Loans and Receivables Wilh .
Limited Coliectibility
Current Period

Period End Balance . gger RS T ¥

Specific Provision (-} (8.767) - (5.729)

Met Balance on Balanee Sheet - o -

Prior Period

Period End Balance R SO SR 3.685

Specifie Provision {-) . - {5.683)
I H H -

Net Balance on Balance Sheet - - -




TORKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI AS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {71Y unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cont’d)

i. Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
5. Information on Loans (Cont’d):
5.5 Infermation on non-performing foans (Net) (Cont’d)

Sid Information regarding gross and net amounts of non-performing loans with respect to user
groups:

Lo WL Growp - W.Grewp . V.Group
o Lomms and Reecivables - Loans and Receivables Uncallectibie Loans
With Limited o With Doubtful 2 [zgcci\:l;] ‘S
e Collectibility | Collectibitity . And Recelvables
Current Period (Nety e e e e
Loans o Real Persons and Legal Patitics (Gros e BT 11476
... Specific Provision Amount (- L B767) LA11.476) |
Loans fo Real Persons and Legal Brtities (Nety e _ -
.. Specific Provision Amount () .
Other Loans and Receivables (Gross) &= . T 3343
L Speetfie Provision Amount (=) e (3.343)
Other Loans and Receivables (Net) - - -

Prior Period (Nef)

Louns Lo Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross)

.. Specilic Provision Amount () (16332) |
Loans to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Nety e .

. opecific Provision Amount (-) T N S B
Banks (Net) B - -
Other Loans and Receivables (Gross) : : 2343
.. Specific Provision Amount () T S S e (3.343)
Other Loans and Receivables {Net) - - -

5.1 Main principles of liquidating loans and receivables

If there are collaterals received complying Article 9 of the Communiqué regarding “Methods and
Principles for the Determination of Loans and Other Receivables to be Reserved for and
Allocation of Reserves”. these collaterals are converted into cash immediately using either
administrative or fegal procedures in order to coliect those receivables.

In cases of no cotlaterals, several financial investigations are made to determine whether any
property holdings are subsequently acquired by applying legal procedures, even if there is
evidence of insolvency for the debtor.

Before and after the beginning of the lquidation process; the Bank management makes
investigations on the financial data of the debtor companies. As a result of these investigations, if
the Bank management agrees that the companies show any indication of operating on an ongoing
basis and probably are going to have contributions in the economical environment in the future;
the Bank management tries to make the collection through rescheduling the payment terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

I Explanations Related fo the Assets (Cont’d)

6. Information on Held-to-Matarity Investinenis:

6.a Information on held-to-maturity investmenis given as collateral or blocked

6.a.1  As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no held-to-maturity investments securities aiven as
collateral or blecked (31 December 2009: None).

6.2.2  As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has T1, 288.814 of investment securities held-to-maturity
subject to repurchase agreements (31 December 2000: T1, 275.934),

6.b Information on investment securities held-to-maturity
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has TL 294.983 of investment securities held-to-maturity
(31 December 2009: TL 280.529).

6.c Information on investment securities held-to-maturity
S DU _ Current Period Prior Peviod
Debt Instrument e PONOB3 280529
Impairment Provision (-) ‘ - -
Total ; 294,983 ¢ 280,529

6.d Movement of investiment securities held-to-maturity

: Current Period [ Prior Period
JBegioning Balanee 273582
Jorei oy differences on monetary assets S,
Disposals through sales and redemptions . S S S
Impairment provision (-} | S R
JClosing Balance 273582 073882
Interest and Iycome Acergals E 21.401% 5 6.947
Total 294,983 280,529

The Bank transferred a portion of its marketable securities in the Available-for-Sale and Financial
Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss portfolios with a notional amount of T1 283.050 and
TL 4.900, respectively, to its Held-to-Maturity portfolio due to the change in the intention. The
fair value of these securities was TL 273,582 as of the transfer date, which is shown as “Purchases
during the yewr™ in the table above. For the securities transferred from Available-for-Sale
portfolio, the positive valuation differences amounting to TL 1.679 under equity reatized until the
transfer date of these securities will be amortized and transferred to profit/loss tili the maturity of
these securities. As of the balance shect date, the positive valuation difference that remains under
equity is TL, 763,
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SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
I Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)
7. Information on Associates (Net):

7.a.F  Information on asseciates

Address

fitle (City/ Country)

Bank’'s share
o percentage-If
fdifferent voting ¢

e ereentage () - (YR)
o i/ ke 20T 171
2 g Factoring Finasman Hizmetleri A.S. (Is Factoring} _ [stanbul/Turkey 21,75 000
3 s Finansal Kiralama A$, (s Finansal) Istanbul/Turkey 2856 3834

ds Girisim Scrmayesi Yaurun Ortaklin AS

Bank’s risk
group share
percentage

4 s Girigim) o _istanbul/Turkey 1067 48,75
5 “Terme Metal Sanayi ve Ticarel A.S. (Terme) istanbul/Turkey 17.83 18,76
income
from ¢ Current
Total Marketable @ Period Prior
: Total : Fixed | Inferest | Securifies | Profil Period | Fair
e Dssets L Bguity 0 Assets | Income - Portfolio 3 ALoss | Profitloss
Sk () 2811 1% WU U T SR I €.) B RO
sPactoring(2) | 337.098 20 STT B T
i Finansal (3) 1692002 46714 1IST 16735 108 39,998 1 99415 107.000
Is Girigim (4) 133290 131070393 - .. 47 8225 16128
Terme (5) 15894 2933 745 58 - 582 882 -
(1} Represents un-reviewed 30 June 2010 financial statements, Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31 December 2009 financial statements.
(2} Represents un-reviewed 30 June 2610 financial staterments. Prior vear profivloss is oblained fom 31 December 2009 financial statemenis.
(3} Represents un-reviewed 30 June 2010 consolidated nancial statements, Prior year profitfloss is obtained Trom 31 December 2009

consolidated financial statements. Fair value is presented as of 30 September 2014,

(4) Represents reviewed 30 June 2010 conselidated financial statements. Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31 December 2000 financiat

slatements. Fair value is presented as of 30 September 2010,
3

7.a.2  Information on associates

Represents unereviewed 30 June 2010 financial stalements, Prior year profit/ioss is obtained from 31 December 2009 {inancial statements,

Current Period

Prioy Period

Balance at the Beginning of the Period

 Purchases
... Bonus Share: Ara I
.. Current Year Share of Profit
L dales

Revaluation Increase

Movements During the Pe :

s

101686
23676

Provision for Impairment
Transters to subsidiaries (%)

... Balance at the End of the Period
Capital Commitments ,
Share Percentage at the End of the Period (%)

s
125302,

..45.980
55700

LTS8 -
23922 10.314

()b the current period, initial cost of TSKB Yaton Oriaklige A8, amounting to TL 5.300 has been transferred from ussociates o

subsidiaries because of the increasing control pover of the Bank aver the Compaiy.
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TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounis expressed in thousands of Twkish Lira C11,) unless otherwise stated,)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLEANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Cont’d)
1 Expianations Related fo the Assets (Cont’d)
7. Information on Associates (Net) (Cont’d):

7.2.2  Information on associates (Cont’d)

In the current period, the Bank has obtained bonus shares of s Finansal Kiralama A.S. amounting

to T1. 12.852 with capital increase of TL 45.000.

TSKB Yatinm Ortakl:igr AS. and Yatinim Finansman Yatirnm Ortaklift A.S., associates of the
Bank, merged under TSKB Yatimm Ortakligr A.S. on 25 June 2009 according to prior approval of
the Capital Market Board on 13 May 2009 and resolution of extraordinary General Assembly, by
ceasing ail rights, receivables, Habilities and legal jurisdiction of Yatiim Finansman Yatirsm
Ortakii® A5, After the merger, the capital of TSKB Yatinm Ortakligi A.S. has been increased 10
TL 29.068 from TL 18.000; and T1. 1.107 unit of stocks of merged entity was given against 1o

each TL 1 unit of stock of Yatirim Finansman Yatinm Ortakligt A.S.

7.a4.3  Sectoral information of associates and the related carrying amounts in the legal books

| Cwrrent Period . Prior Period
Ins Companics T S
Factoring Companies 0 ESSL 1SS
Leasing Companics . e 107,000 Lo 18256
Financial Service Companies - — RS -
Other Associales : 16811 ' 25.8779'
7.a.4  Information on associates quoted on stock market:
" Current Period ¢ Prior Period
Asxoualcsqu()lul(m fm'c'igﬁ stoek cﬁchaliﬁcg - 7 T 7 . L

745 Information on associates sold in the current period:

In the cwrrent pericd, the Board of Direciors have authorised the General Manager on the meeting
held on 25 March 2010 with the resolution numbered 1930 for the sale of all shares of Senapa
Stampa Ambala; Sanayi ve Tiearet A5,an associate which the Bank had acquired its shares
tirough venture capital funds of the European Investment Bank (“EIB™). The sale transaction was
reafized on 11 May 2010 and proceeds from the sale have been transferred o E1B as agreed. The
Board of Directors have authorised the General Manager on the meeting held on 28 June 2010
with the resolution numbered 1951 for the sale of all shares of Unsa Ambalaj Sanayi ve Ticaret
A.S., associale which the Bank had acquired its shares through venture capital funds of the
Buropean Investment Bank (“EIB™). The sale transaction was realized on 13 August 2010 and

proceeds from the sale will be transferred to EIR as agreed (31 December 2009: None).
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TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1| JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (11,) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

i Explanations Related fo the Assets (Cont’d)
8. Information on Subsidiavies (Net):

g.a.1 Information on subsidiaries

Title

4 TSKDB Yaurnm Ortakhi A5, (TSKB Y.0.)

P

3 TSKB Gayrimenkal Yatmim Ortakhgt A.§, (TSKB GYQ) -

BanlCs share
percenfage-
different voting

Address
{City/ Couniry}

_pervcentage (o) -

[stanbui /Turkey 99 99
Istanbui /Turkey 95.78
stanbulTurkey 59,00

Istanbul/Turkey

Bank’s risk groap
share percentage

(()“)

99,§F)

97.63 )
6
100,00

YSKB Gayrimenkul Aracihk Hizmetleri A.S. JstanbulTurkey
6 TSKD Gayrimenkul Danmsmanhk Hizmetleri ALS. Istanbul/Turkey 100,00

8747

Total Cncome form - Current
Total Sharcholders’ I“ixed nlerest Marketable Period o Prior Period
Assets o Bquity 0 Assels o Income oo Securitics . Profivless | Profiloss o Fair Value
2354 - - T s -

YSKBGYOQ) 330001 221065 | 283987 1403 L3836 76993

TSKBY.0.(1) W99 danEs2 - 20 L I23I8 5566,

TUAS ) 202 22 M : 2 - -

TGD AS (6) 209 197 : 14 3 - (43) - -

{1 Represents un- reviewed 30 Sepiember 2010 financial statements. Prior year profit/loss is obtained from 31 December 2009 linancial
statements.

{2 Represents un- reviewed 30 Sepiember 2010 financial statements. Prior year profitloss is obtained from 31 December 2009 financial
slatements.

{3 Represents reviewed 30 September 2010 financial statements, Prioi vear profitloss is obtained from 31 December 2009 financia)
statements, Fair value is presented as of 30 Seplember 2010

{4} Represents un- reviewed 30 September 2010 Nnancial statements. Prior year proffloss is obtained from 31 Decamber 2009 financial
statements. Fair value is presenied as of 30 September 2010

{5y Represents un- reviewved 30 September 2010 Fnaneial statements. The company has started 10 operate on 10 Febroary 20140, and financial
statements of prior period do not exist.

{6} Represents un- reviewed 30 September 2010 financial statements, The company has stavted fo operate on 10 February 2010, and financial

statements of prior period de nof exist.

8.a2.2 Information on subsidiaries

Balance at the beginning of the period

. Movements in period

Lo Parchases
_Bonus shares obtained

«

. Revaluation increase
. Provisiol irmen
~Transfer [rom associates (%)
Balance at the end of the period
_Capital commitments

Share percentage at the end of the period (%)

Current Period
142

(6501

234

55000

136.038

Prior Period

L 142539

142539

) Inthe current period. initial cost of TSKEB Yatiran Oricklig A5, amonnting to 1L 3.500 has been transferred from associates 1o subsidiaries

hecause of the increasing control povver of the Bank over the company.

(%) I the current perviod, stocks of TSKB GYO amownring 1o 71 7.300 were sold from the Bank's portfolio during the inirial public offering.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI AL,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (17,) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

I.
8.
8.a4.3

8.a.4

8.4.6

9,

Explanations Related to the Asseis (Cont’d)
Information on Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Sectoral information on subsidiaries and the related carrying amounts in the Iegal books

Subsidiarics e e, Carvent Period 0 Prior Period
Banks : . -
Insurance Companies : - -

Factoring Companies -

Lo

. Limancial Service Companies
Other Subsidiarics : 136.038 142,539

Subsidiaries quoted on stock market

. Current Period Prior Pertod
Subsidiaries quoted on forcign stock exchanges - -

Subsidiarics quoted on domestic siock exchanges

In the current period, the Bank has obtained bonus shares of Yatirm Finansman Menkul Degerler
A.S. amounting to TL 6.705 with capital increase of TL 7.000.

Subsidiaries sold in the current period

The Bank has not sold any subsidiaries in the current period. One of the Bank’s subsidiary TSKI3
GYO has been offered to public with a rate of 33%, by increasing its capital to TL 150.000 from
TL 100.000. Since demand collected exceeded the issuance amount, during the initial public
offering the Bank has sold some shares that it owned prior to the public offering amounting to TL
7.500 (31 December 2009: None).

Subsidiaries purchased in the current period

In the current period, the Bank has joined to the establishment of the company named TSKI3
Gayrimenkul Aracihk Hizmetleri A.$. with a capital amounting to T1. 48 and the ownership ratio
of %696 and the company named TSKB Gayrimenkul Damismaniik Hizmetleri AS. with a capital
TL 6,5 and the ownership ratio of 1%. The Bank has classified these companies as subsidiaries (31
December 2009: None).

In order (o increase capital and meet cash requirements of TSKB Gayrimenku] Aracilik Hizmetleri
A.S. that was established on 10 February 2010 with the 96 % participation of the Bank with a
capital amounting to TL 48 and TSKB Gayrimenkul Damsmanhk Hizmetleri AS. that was
established on 6 June 2010 with 1 % participation of the Bank with a capital amounting to T1. §,5,
it has been decided to make a General Assembly. The capitals for both of the companies have
been decided to be increased by TL 50 from TL 190 to TL 240 separatcly, and the decision has
been published in the Turkish Gazette on 21 June 2010, After the capital increase the Bank’s share
at these companics does not change. TL 182,4 of increased capital TSKB Gayrimenkui Aracilik
Hizmetleri A.§ and TL 1,9 of increased capital at TSKB Gayrimenkul Danismaniik Hizmetleri
A5, are paid by the Bank.

Information on Entities under Common Control:

The Bank has no entities under common control as of the balance sheet date {31 December 2009;
None}.
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TORKIYE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASE A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1| JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed b thousands of Turkish Lira (1L unless othernvise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont*d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCYAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)

1L Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)

10. Information on Finance Lease Reeeivables (Net):

1.2 Maturities of investmenis on finance leases

Current Period : Prior Period
Gross Nei Gross Net

Less than 1 year L2003 2 AT Lo dedAd L 15929
Between J-dyews 57020 34200 91239 92953
More than 4 years - - 28.270 26.194
Total 81.629 78.477 141,853 135.076

10.b  The information on net investments in finance leases

Current Period Prior Period

Gross investments in finance leases L8169 141853
Uncamed revenue from finance leases () U GI52) - L eTTT
Cancelled finance leases (-) - -
Net investments in finance leases : 78.477 : 135.076

10.c  Explanation with respect to finance lease agreements, the criteria used in determination of
contingent rents, conditions for revisions or purchase options, updates of leasing amounts
and the restrictions imposed by lease arrangements, whether arrays in repayment oceur,
whether the terms of the contract are rencewed, if renewed, the renewal conditions, whether
the venewal results any restrictions, and other important conditions of the leasing agreement
Finance lease agreements are made in accordance with the related articles of financial leasing law
3226. There are no restructuring or restrictions; which has material effeet on financial statements.

il. Information on Berivative Finaneial Assets for Hedging Purposes:
The Bank has no derivative financial assets for hedging purposes as of the balance sheet date (31
December 2009; None),

2. Information on Envestment Property:
The Bank has no investment property (31 December 2009: None).

13. information on Deferved Tax Assets:

13.a  Temporary differences, fax losses, exemptions and deductions reflected to balance sheet as

deferred tax asset

The Bank has computed deferred tax asset or liability on temporary differences arising from
carrying values of assets and labilities in the accompanying financial statements and their tax
bases.
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TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKAST A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Liva (1L unless otherwise staled .}

SECTION FIVE (Coni’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Cont’d)

E Explanations Related to the Assets (Cont’d)

13. Information on Deferred Tax Assets (Cont’d):

I3.a  Temporary differences, tax losses, exemptions and deductions reflected to balance sheet as
deferred tax asset (Cont’d)

Deferred tax nssef: Current Period o Prior Period
CMselul life difference of fixed assets B S P03
Vinancial lease adjustments, et
Fmployee benelit provision -~ SRR S 2 T L
Loan commissions acerual adjwstment 8667 6]4)
| Other provisions et e e e+ e C e 9.364 12,058
. Fairvalue difference of marketable seeurities 0 B 14
Toial Deferred Tax Asset : 19717 26,226
L Derivative Instrament aeeruals e e
- Loan commissions acerual adjustment Q0N (805)
 Pairvalue difference of marketable seeuriies 080y
Total Deferred Tax Liability ; {(3.354) {1,109}
Net Deferred Tax Asset : 16.323 25.117
In addition, T1L 14.748 deferred tax, which is cafculated over the fair value differences on
avaitable for sale securities, is offset against the “available for sale securities value increase fund™
item under equity (31 December 2009: T1 11.429).

13.b Temporary differences over which deferred tax asset are not computed and recorded in the
balance sheet in prior periods, if so, their expiry date, losses and tax deduetions and
exeepfions
The Bank has no deductible temporary differences that are not included in caleulation of deferred
tax asset and not reflected to financial statements in prior periods.

I3.c Allowance for deferved tax and deferred tax assets from reversal of allowance
As of the balance sheet date, the Bank has no allowance for deferred fax and deferred tax liability
from reversal of allowance.

4. Information on Assets Held For Sale
In the current period, the Bank has no asscts held for sale (31 December 2009: None),

15. Enformation about Other Assets:

I5.a  Other assets which exceed 10 % of the balance sheet fotal (excluding off balance sheet

commitments) and breakdown of these which constitute at feast 20 % of grand total

Other assets are not exceeding 10 % of total assets, excluding off-balance sheet commitments (31
December 2009: None).
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

fAmounts expressed in thousands of Turkisly Lira (71 uniess otherwise stated,)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Cont’d)
H 8 Explanations Related to the Liabilities
1. Information of Maturity Structure of Deposits:
Lad  Maturity Structare of Deposits
The Bank is not authorized 1o accept deposits.
La2  Information on saving deposits under the guarantee of saving deposit insurance fund and
exceeding the limit of deposit insurance fund
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.
1.b Information on the scope whether the Banl with a foreign head office suits saving deposit
insurance of the related country
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits,
l.c Saving deposits which are not under the guarantee of deposit insurance fund
The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.
2. Information on Derivative Financial Liabilities Held-For-Trading:
2.a Negative differences table related to derivative financial liabilities held-for-trading
o o ] rrent Period Prior Period
Derivative financial liabilities held for rading [ ——————
Vorward Transactions
Swap Transactions 0 .. 1973
Anutures Transactions SRS S S ,,”, '
Options e [ o % B S 298, 1521
Other - - - -
Total 5.922 10,615 7.271 4.707
3. Information on Funds Borvowed:
3.4 Information on banks and other financial institutions
Current Period : Prior Period
e M FC ML ¥C
. Loans from Central Bank of Turkey B S RS S
..Lrom Domestic Banks and Institutions Q0002773 20003 120219
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and Funds ¢ - 4.364.873 41557 4.183.838
Total 1,000 4.417.646 24.158 4.304.057
3.b Maturity analysis of funds borrowed
Current Period Prior Period
TL 3 . TL . ¥C
Short-term , L 40000 2808020 20003 267557
Medium and long-term - 4.136.844 4.155:  4.036.500
l'otal 1,000 4.417.646 24,158 4.304.057

LSy
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TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI AS.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (T1.) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Cont*d)

Ei. Ixplanations Related fo the Liabilities (Cont*d)

4. Gther Liabilities which Exceed 10 % of the Balance Sheet Tetal (Excluding Off-Balance
Sheet Commitments) and the Breakdown of These which Constitute at Least 20 % of Grand
Tatal;

There are no other liabilities, which exceed 10% of the balance sheet total (31 December 2009:
None).

5 Explanations on Financial Lease Obligations (Net):

5.0 The general explanations on criteria used in determining installments of financial lease
agreements, renewal and purchasing options and restrictions in the agreements that create
significant obligations to the bank
The Bank entered into the financial lease transactions with its affiliate; is Finansal Kiralama A.S.,
and Valaf Finansal Kiralama A.$. The lease agreements are paid in equal installments. There are
no issues in these transactions bringing important liabilitics to the Bank,

5b The explanation on modifications in agreements and new obligations thai these
modifications cause
There are no changes in financial leasing contracts,

5.¢ Explanations on finance lease payables

- Current Period Prior Period
S _ Gross. N Net : Gross Net
an | year 1 I -
Between | and 4 o :
More than 4 years . S
Total _ 2 - 3 -

5.d Explanations regarding operational leases:

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank’s 2 head office buildings and 3 branches are subjeet to
operational leasing. The Bask has no liability for operational leases in the current period (31
December 2009: 2 head office buildings, 3 branches and 7 cars under operational leasing).

S5.e Explanations on the lessor and lessee in sales and lease back transactions, agreement
conditions, and major agreement terms:

The Bank has no sale and lease back transactions as of the balance sheet date (31 December 2009:
None).
6. Information on Derivative Finaneial Liabilities for Hedging Purposes:

The Bank has no derivative financial liabilities for hedging purposes as of the balance sheet date
{31 December 2009: None).
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Ameunts expressed in Wousands of Turkish Lira (1710 uniess otherwise stated )

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cont’d)

H. Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)
7. Information on Provisions:
7. Information on general provisions
Current Period " Prior Period
_ General Provisions s 3346

_LProvisions for First Group Loans and Receivables 28262 27297

_ Provisions for Second Group Leans and Receivables e 1699
Provisions for nop-Cash Loans LOIT L 123

Other f 3.840 3344

7.b Foreign exchange losses on the forcign currency indexed loans and finance lease receivables:

The foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans amount 1o TL 38.676 (31
December 2009: T1. 10.856). The foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans
are netted off from the loans in the financial statements.

7. Information related to other provisions:

7.c.1  Provision for possible losses:

. Current Period . Prior Period

Provisions for Possible Losses .

7.2 1f other provisions exceeds 10% of total provisions, the name and amount of sub-accounts

o - : (Jlu'rentl’gl__-imlll ‘ Prior Period
Provision for Possible Losses T
Provision for Dividend Received from Subsidiaries S S 1.120
Other (%) : 46.825 39275
Total : 46.825 60,395

(%) Other provision account inclicdes Ti. 46.808 of provision for possible risks on credit porifolio in the future period (31 December
2009: 7L 56,808).

8. Explanations on the Number of Subordinated Loans the Bank Used, Maturity, Interest
Rate, Institution that the Loan was Borrowed From, and Conversion Option, If Any:

The Bank has signed an agreement with the International Finance Corporation, for a subordinated
loan of USD 50.000 Million (TL. 72.625). The interest expense accrual of this borrowing is TL
917 as of the balance sheet date.

The first agreement date of the loan was 21 September 2004, The first usage date was 5 November
2004. The interest rate is variable; at the balance sheet date it is 2,706 % (0,45612,25 spread).
Principal repayment of the loan will be on 15 October 2016 as a whole.




TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASE A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD | JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated )

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Cont’d)
I Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont*d)
9. Information on Taxes Payable:
Corporuie Faxes and Deferred Taxes o CwerentPeriod - Prior Period
_ ' TL FC Ti. e
Corporate tax payable (%) LAz e 0T
Deferred tax liability - - -
Total 12,222 ¢ - 11.078 ¢ -
(%) In the crrveni period, Corporaie Tax Provision is 11 39.232 and neited of from Prepaic Tax of TL 27.000 (31 Deeember 2009:
Corporate Tax Provision is 71 62,035 and netted off from Prepaid Tax of T 30,977,
9.a Information on deferred taxes labilities:
At the balance sheet date, the Bank has no deferred tax liability (31 December 2009: Noneg).
9.a.1  Information on taxes payable:
© Current Period ¢ Prior Period 1
Corporaie laxes payable cJaame 1078
... Laxation of seeuritics 007 893
 Bamking and Insurance Transaction Tax (BITT) LAS8 L ss3
Vereign Exchange Transaction Tax. 0
JValue Added Tax Payable 80 144
 Other 765 ¢ 1.971
Fotal 14.298 14.041
%.4.2  Information on premiums:
Current Period Prior Period
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium-Employee -
| Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premiom-Employer - -
Pension Fumd Membership Fees and Provisions-Employee - -
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions-Employer - -
Unemployment insurance-Lmployee I IR 13
Hnemployment insurance-Lmployer - LA L35
Other - -
Total 46 38




TORKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

fAmounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Liva (T1) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Cont*d)

1. Explanations Related to the Liabilities (Cont’d)

16. Information on Shareholders’ Equity:

ih.a  Presentation of paid-in capital

Current Period © Prior Period

Commensteck Jfeo0e 600,000
Preferred stock ) : - -

1b  Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system ceiling
is applicable at bank, if so, amount of registered share capital

Capital System Paid-in capital Ceiling

Registered Capital Systen: 700.000 - 1.000.600

10.c  Information on share capital increases and their sources; other information on increased
capital shares in current period
In the current period, the Bank’s share capital has increased by T1 100.000. In the meetin g of the
General Assembly held on 25 March 2010; it has been resolved that, paid-in capital of the Bank
will be increased from TL 600.000 to TL, 700.000 by TL 100.000. In respect of the resolution of
the General Assembly, T 85.000 of this increase will be mcorporated from the profit of the year
2009 and T1, 15.000 from extraordinary reserves. The increase in paid-in capital was approved by
the BRSA on 27 April 2010 and has been published in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazetie No:
7576 on 2 June 2010.
In the prior period, the Bank’s share capital has increased by T1L 100.000. In the meeting of the
General Assembly held on 25 March 2010, it has been resolved that, paid-in capital of the Bank
will be increased from TL 500.000 to TL 600.000 by T1. 100.000. In respect of the resolution of
the General Assembly, TL 96.000 of this increase wilf be incorporated from the profit of the year
2008 and T1. 4.000 from extraordinary reserves. The increase in paid-in capital was approved by
the BRSA on 29 April 2009 and has been published in the Turkish Trade Registry Gazetie No:
7335 on 18 June 2009,

10.d  Information on share capital increases from capital reserves
In the current period there is no share capital increases from capital reserves (31 December 2009
None).

H.e  Capital commitments in the last fiscal year and at the end of the following interim period,

the general purpose of these commitments and projected resources required to meet these
commitments

The Bank has no capital commitments in the last fiscal year and at the end of the following
interim period.
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TORKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASE A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise siated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

1R Explanations Related fo the Liabilities (Cont’d)
106. Information on Sharcholders’ Equity (Cont’d)

16.f  Indicators of the Bank’s income, profitability and liquidity for the previous periods and
possible effects of these future assumptions on the Bank’s equity due to the uneertainty of
these indicators
The prior period income, profitability and tquidity of the Bank and their trends in the successive
periods are followed by Iinancial Controtling Department by considering the ouicomes of the
potential changes in the foreign exchange rate, interest rate and maturity alterations on
profitability and liquidity under various scenario analyses. The Bank operations are profitable, and
the Bank retains the major part of its profit by capital increases or capital reserves within the
sharcholders equity.,

10.g  Information on preferred shares
The Bank has no preferred shares (31 December 2009: None).

10.h  Information on marketable securities value inerease fund

Current Period Prior Period
M o¥eom ke
IFrom Associates, Subsidiaries, and FEntities ‘
..... Under Common Control e AO389 AT
..... Valuation Differences ' 24006 37304 35941 13301
- Foreign Exchange Dilference : - - - -
Total : 40.605 37304 40.058 13.301
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI ALS,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD | JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounis expressed in thonsands ol Turkish Lira (17, unless otherwise stated,)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cong’d)

I Explanations Related to the Off-Balunce Sheet ftems

i. Information on Off-Balance Sheet Liabilities:
l.a Natare and amount of irrevocable loan commitments

None other than those disclosed in 1.b.F and 1.1.2 below.

i.h Possible losses and commitments related fo off-balance sheet items including items listed
below

I.b.X  Non-cash loans including gnarantees, acceptances, financial collaterals and other Jetters of
eredits

As at the balance sheet date, fotal letters of credit are TL 210.744 (31 December 2009 TL
180.321).

Lb.2  Guarantees, surety ships, and similar transactions

As at the balance sheet date, total letters of guarantee is T1 726.823 (31 December 2009: TL

357.761).
f.c.l  Total amount of non-cash loans
¢ Current Peried Prior Period

Non-cash loans given against obtaining cash loans o esm0 98107
_ With matrity of one year or less than one year e e T
L With maturity of more thanone year 95196 o 9s10T
Other non-cash loans : 1.022.100 618.276
Fotal 5 1.117.200 716.383
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2610

Amounts exnressed in thousands of Twrkish Lira (T1.) unless otherwise stated. )

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

1il. Explanations Related to the Gff-Balance Sheet Contingencies and Commitmenis (Cont’d)
1. Information on Off-Balance Sheet Liabilities (Cont’d)

I.c.2  Information on sectoral visk breakdown of non-cash {oans:

Curreng Period Prior Period
TL C (%) e (%) Ti. (%) ¥FC (%)

Agricullure : - i .

FFarming and stockbreeding : - . “ . - W -
Forestry - 2 - . - . . -
Fishing . o . . 3 . . .

Indusiry AL S0 79 HIsMT. % ;36
Mining M- xRS S - 3 T S '

 MofewringIndosty  ode0 1 eoue6 v 7766 2 20807

_ Bleeticity, Gas Waer —1ss067. 400 509434 70 107277 31 109894 3

Comstruction 2048305 22630 3 3007 9. 26000 7

Services L 204984 54 132227 380 199337 S8 2126290 57

Whalesale and Retail Trade . -i 374723 41 - - 105.151 | 20
Hotel, Food and Beverage ‘ : o
Transportation and : : :

_ Communication BE UE =71 EAER E 2 i 98d07 2

Financial Institutions 200,799 ':3 9239 1. 195168 57 8.982

Real Asset and Leasing Services =2 S I 2 F - Wy -l 389 -

Seif-employment Services 4000 1. Lo SRR 1114 UL S R

Fiducation Services . LS TS B - S DD ST AT

Health and Social Services ) o - - - R Y R ,

Other : 65 - . . g . - .

Tofal 383.933 . 100 733387 100 344,963 100 371,420 100

L.e3 Information on Ist and [nd group non-cash loans

st Grup ‘ . Jiod Grap N
__PriorPeriod  Current Period . Prier Peviod
LY R CFL L XC TL IC Xl FC
383,803 34963 3704200 40 oo
301,125 425.658 26

Current Peripd

Mon-cash Loans

Letters of Guarantee & 893550 40 7 “

_Bank Acceptances -

Lewersof Credit  — .o 210744 -10320 - I

Fndorsements e P i - - S R T
Purchase Guaraniees on : : : : :
Issuance of Sceurities o T T T T :

. Factoring Guarantees & T - S " T ot SR S -

Other 82768 96,955 76,557 101,744 - . - -
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (110 unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cont’d)

L Explanations Related to the Off-Balanee Sheet Contingencies and Commitments (Cont®d)
2, Explanations on Contingent Liabilitics and Assets:

There are 8 fegal cases against the Bank which are amounting to T1. 163 as of the balance sheet

<&

date (31 December 2009: TL 13 1.

1V, Explanations Related to the Statement of Income
l.a Information on interest on loans
_Current Peviod o Prior Peviod
TL ¥C TE. : FC

Interest on loans (*)

_Short term loans - ]843 2630

26788

_Medium and long term loans

Interest on non-performing loans

Premiums received from Resource Utilization " : : :
Support Fund 1 - , - -
Total E 61.397 78.024 . 85.322 99,424
(S Commissions icome from foans have been included fo the interest on foans.
Lb Information on interest received from banks:
. CurrentPeviod - PriorPevied
. The Centrad Bank of Turkey S SRS I SOt N
o Domesticbanks 0 Lo 8776 e 6T 2896 11
... Foreign banks S S T 68479
Branches and head office abroad e - - .
Total » 6783 135 2.900 801
i.e Infermation on interest received from marketable securitics:
..... Current Period i Prior Period
S e FC o Th o FC
Trading Securities L RTSS34T. 18837
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and 5 :
Available for Sale l'*‘iz];_i_p_g_ial_{\__.sscis y ‘ 123922 0 2400 ~166.408 24307
Investments Held to Maturity 25.591 . 7.764 -
Total 152,268 25,274 176,055 24.324
1.d Information on inferest income received from associates and subsidiaries:
Current Period : Prior Period
Interest received from associates and subsidiarics 7963 6.507
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(Amounts expressed i thousands of Turkish Lira {T1.) unless otherwise siated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cont’d)
EY. Explanations Related to the Statement of Income (Coni*d)
Z.a Information on interest on funds borrowed
- Curvent Peripd Priov Pesiod
TL e : TL _ FC
Banks o . A0 L3329 8T 14.470
Central Bank of Turkey 49 - 21
omestic banks 504 - 237 ) 443
Forcign banks 7: 3.092: 321,
Branches and head office abroad : 7 ; - -
Other financial institutions - 30,106 ~ F17.245
Total(*) 560 . 33435 787 131.715
() omnissions given fo other financial instifutions have been included to inferest expense on flinds borrowed,
2.b Information on inferest expense to associates and subsidiaries
The Bank has no interest expense to its associates and subsidiaries.
3. Information on Net Trading EIncome (Net):
e e . CurrentPeriod  Prior Period
Profit 275852 327864
Guins on capital market operations L ABIE o 8089
On derivative financial instruments(*), Leee o 93.868
Foreign exchange gains L 205832 225007
Losses (-3 o (282.049) - (324.918)
Losses on capital market operations L8990y = {6.588)
On dert nancial instruments(*) L6604y L A91.627)
Forcign exchange losses {202,443y ¢ (226.703)
(%} Forcign exchange gain from derivaiive transactions amounting to 11 29.702 is presenied in “Profit on derivative financiol
instruments " (30 Seplember 2009: 71 31.254), foreign exchange foss from derivative transactions amonnting to 7L (32.532) is
presemted in " Losses on devivative flnanciad instriments (30 Seplember 2009: FL (49,998,
4. Information related to Other Operating Income:
U . Current Peviod -+ Prigr Peried
Provisions Released 18.500 - 20.078
Gains on Sale of Assels _ : 76 193
ociale and Subsi 375 -
From Movable Fixed As - 161
From Propertics Sales : 41 32
Irom Other Assel Sales : 360 - “
Other : 922 1.344
‘Total 20,198 21.615
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {11) unless ofherwise stated,)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE MENTS

{(Cont’d)
iv. Expianations Related to the Statement of Income (Cont’d)
A, Provision Expenses related to Loans and Other Receivables of The Bank:

Current Period

. Prier Period

J78,

e 770
(xwudi provision expenses 2.350 -
Provision expenses lor possible lussu, e -
Marketable sceurities impairment expenses 0,574 ¢ 1799
Trading seew S U
Investment securities avaalabk 101 s.lh_ 6574 7.722
]p_1_pq_umuﬂ provisions . -
Subszdmnu - -
I mmu. un(lu u)mmon u)nl](}i (]oml vun ) . -
C nesmentse held to maturity LT e T
Qther 0683 30.000
Total 18,453 38.573
6. Information related to Other Operating Expenses:

Personnel Sxpenses

Current Period

L Prior Period

24.322 H’/‘
Reserve for cmp}(wu, luzmndiaon E)anhls o V 919 iEI
Bank social aid fund deficit ])I ovision _
impmrmcm cxpcnses‘ of fixed assets _
Dupnu‘mon L\})LIISLS of fixed assets 9()] ”880
lmpdnmuu L\pum,s of mlanyb} assols . “
' ]mp.nnmm L\])LT]SL of goo(l\\:li . _ -
Amortization L\pum,s of ml(mg}bk ass 2(.)3. 3.99
[mpanmu}{ on subsidiarics ammmlui 0:' undcr u;mlv method 7 7_ _
lmp'mmun(m assels for resale I 3(} T .
I)mehumn L\])LH‘»LS ()i assels for }LSAEL B .882 - 1.1 13
]m]}dnmu]l u\pum,s ol assets hLl(l for \(IIL o ._
Olhu opual:m L\])(.,]l‘:(,‘s . . 15.().].8 .: o ] ()212
Rent expenses o 4(}33 j_79§
‘Maintenance cx])é'nsc*; 3(]] - 2(,4
* Adveslisement ¢ c,\puasu, R ?)ﬁz 330
Other L\pcnsu 9707 . - 5776
1Loss on \!zlc,s 0{ dssus - 5(5 - 2()
Other a2 3,594
Total 44.833 38.564




TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD | JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amwounts expressed jn thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

IV,

7.
7.2

7.b

9,
9.a

9.b

9.¢

10.

Explanations Related to the Statement of Income {(Cont’d)
Information on Tax Provision for Taxes on Income:
Information on current tax charge or benefit and deferved fax eharge or benefit

The Bank’s current tax charge for the period is 11, 39.232 (30 September 2009: TL 51.973).
Deferred tax charge is T 5.475 (30 September 2009: T1, 24.095 deferred tax benelit),

Information related to deferred tax charge or benefit on temporary differences

Deferred tax charge caleulated on temporary differences is TL 5.475 (3G September 2009: TL
24.095 deferred tax benefit).

Information related to deferred tax charge on temporary differences, losses, tax deductions
and exceptions

As of 30 September 2010 deferred tax charge calculated based on temporary differences is TL
3475 (30 September 2009: T, 24.095 deferred tax benefit). There is no deferred tax benefit or
charge refiected to the income statement on carry forward tax losses, tax deductions and
exceptions (30 September 2009: None).

information on profit / (loss) before tax from continued and discontinued operations;

As of 30 September 2010, profit before tax of the Bank has increased by 32,73 % (30 September
2009: 30,39%).

Information on Net Profit/Loss

The natare and amount of certain income and expense items {from ordinary operations is
disclosed if the disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rate of such items is required
for the complete understanding of the Bank’s performance for the period

The Bank has generated T 327,190 interest income, TL 99.949 inferest expenses and TL, 7.926
net fee and commission income from banking operations (30 September 2009: TL 396.317
interest income, TL, 206.552 interest expense, TL 4,597 net fee and commission income).

The effect of the change in accounting estimates to the net profit/loss; including the effects to
the future period, if any

Changes in the accounting estimates and accordingly effect on the financial statement items s
disclosed in “Accounting Policies” section of the report,

Minority share of profit and loss

There s no profit and loss attributable to minority interest in the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements (30 September 2009: None).,

If the other items in the income statement exceed 10 % of the income statement jofal,
accounts amounting to at least 20 % of these items are shown below:

None other than other operating income explained in note 1V.4 and other operating expense
explained in note 1V.6, exceeds 10% of the income statement,
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY — 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {173 unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)

EXPLANATIONS AND DISCLOSURES ON UNCONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

V. Explanations on the Risk Group of the Bank
1. Enformation on the Volume of Transactions Related to the Bank’s Own Risk Group,

Ouistanding Loan and Deposit Transactions and Income and Expenses of the Period:

i.a Current Period
Risk Groun of the Bank Birceet and indirect ;- Other entities included
TR e I Subsidiaries and associates shareholders of the Banle & in the risk group (*)
S o Cash o MNonash © Cash_ Cash_ . Nonecash
Loans and other reccivables '
Balance at beginning ol : : :
Coperied Coie L JR0ATX05 3339691 117413 39585 L
. Balance atend of period = 182734 351 S4do 117413 3rav2 -
Interest and commission : ‘ ;
income : 7.909 3 932 220 1.505 -

(%) Crher entities included in the risk group;: covers the financial lease receivables amownting of T 665 (31 Decentber 2009: 11, 1.433).

1.b Prior Period

P . : Direct and indirect : Other entities included

Rislc Group of the Bank ST s : . .
e SUDSIdiaries and associates - shaveholders of the Bank . in the risk group (%)

o...Cash . Nom-eash . Cash ...Cash . Non-cash
Loans and other receivables = ' '

Balance at beghming of ; : : ;

period e, L 130ALSD T2 eEALTs90 66812 926
Balanceatend ofperiod + 204110 334 39691 V7413 39585 L
Interest and comimission ‘ : f
income received (%) : 6,434 2 36 312 339 -
(*JOther eniitics inclided in the risk group: covers the finaneial lease receivables amounting of 71, 1433 (37 Decentber 2008 T1 2.27 6).
(%51 e information is related 1o 30 Seprentber 2009,
Le Information on deposit held by Bank’s own risk group

The Bank is not authorized to accept deposits.

2. Information on forward, option and other similar agreements made with Bank’s own risk

group:
The Bank has no forward, option and other similar agreements with the Bank’s own risk group.
3. Total salaries and shmilar benefits provided to the key management personnel

Benefits provided to the key management personnel in the current period amount to T1, 5.263 (30
September 2009: T1. 3.501),
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Liva {11, unless otherwise staed,)

SECTION FIVE (Cont’d)
EXPLANATIONS AND DESCLOSURES ON UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Cont’d)

Vi,

Explanations Related to Subsequent Events

SAHA Kurumsal Yénetim ve Kredi Derecelendirme MHizmetleri AS. (SAHA  Corporate
Governance and Credit Rating Services A.S.), a corporate governapce raling institution with the
Capital Markets Board license, declared TSKB’s corporate governance rating was raised to 8,92
over 10 (89,15) from 8,77 over 10 (87,69 %); on its report dated on 19 Octaber 2016, With respect
to CMDB’s board decision No: 4/100 on 7 TFebruary 2005, ratings under the main topics of
Shareholders, Public Disclosure and Transparency, Stakeholders, Board of Directors have been
declared as; 8,77 (Weight: 25 %), 9,30 (Weight: 35 %), 9,57 (Weight: 15 %), 8,05 (Weight: 25 %)
respectively.

According 1o “Press release related to reserve requirements” of the Central Bank of Turkey, dated
23 September 2010 and numbered 2010/9, foreign currency reserve requirement rate for banks has
been increased from 10 % to 11 % and Turkish Lira (TL) reserve requirements is increased from 5
% 10 5,5 %. Related press release will become effective at 1 Qctober 2010,

SECTION SIX
OTHER EXPLANATIONS

L

Ia

Explanations Related to Operations of the Bank
Explanations Related to Marketable Securities Issued

The Bank has issued bonds with nominal value of T1, 200.000 and maturity between 180 days and
360 days on 19 August 2010 with the permission of the Capital Markets Board dated 27 July 2010
and numbered 13.02,1 SPK.013-1008, and based on Board Registration Certificate dated 10
August 201G and numbered 3/BB- 630. The bonds issued are measured using effective interest
rate method.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE INTERIM PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 30 SEPTEMBER 2010

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira CVLY unless ofherwise stated 3

SECTION SIX
OTHER EXPLANATIONS

i.
Lb

Explanations Related to Operations of the Bank
Brief Information Related to Rating Carried Qut By International Rating Firms:
FITCH RATINGS

[Foreign Currency ‘ SR

- Longierm Materity » BB L
Sho“ ferm Maturity o ,.,1.3. e
Turkish Lira

Longtem Mawrity B BB' B

~Short clom Maarity ,,Buum““““m
7 l ong1 tu m Mauu [ly ~ AA(tr)
‘ OUHOO e ‘ o Stable
S N ¢
Suppo:t : 3

Information above is received from Fitch Ratings report dated 8 January 2010, The Bank’s ratings
were confirmed in Fitch Rating declaration dated 28 July 2010.

MOODY’S
Financial Rating Note ) ‘ : D -
Outlook e Stable
Foreign C nzmnc,y ‘
Long- ium Mamniy _________ ” - i BAJ -
Outlook () .. Dosiive
Short-term Ma[m]iy 4 N/P

(") International Credit Rating Service (Moody’s Investors Service) declured that “BA3 hat is explained af TSKI3s
Long term maturity foreign currency rating nole’s outlook has been changed from ‘stable’ to ‘positive’

Information above is received from Moody’s Investors Service report as of § January 2010.

SECTION SEVEN
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS®’ REVIEW REPORT

L

I1.

Explanations on the Independent Auditors® Review Report

Unconsolidated financial statements and the notes to the financial statements as at 30 September
2010 have been reviewed by Akis Bagmmsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik
A5, (“the Turkish member firm of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity”). The
independent auditors’ review report dated 4 November 2010 is presented at the beginning of the
financial statements and related notes.

Explanations and Notes prepared by Independent Auditors

There are no other explanations and notes not expressed in sections above related with the Bank’s
operations.
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